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To Qur Sharsowners:

Interactive Intelligence has always been an ambitious
company, looking to change the world and bring
compelling value to its customers. In 2004, our goals
are to seize a greater share of mainstream enterprise
markets by delivering whole products to Fortune 2000
organizations, small to medium-sized businesses, and
vertical industries—markets that continue to need total
solutions such as those offered by Interactive Intelligence.

As the world’s only developer of Microsoft®based IP
business communications products, now is the time for
Interactive Intelligence to not only gain greater shares in
these markets, but to dominate them. We will do so both
by leveraging our leadership in the contact center arena
and by capitalizing on partnership opportunities with the
Microsoft Business Solutions Partner channel, which has
joined us for a series of field seminars throughout 2004
to position our IP products with the Microsoft Business
Solutions applications suite.

Other components of our 2004 strategy are equally
straightforward:

Package whole solutions that appeal to
mainstream buyers. The solutions from Interactive
Intelligence have always been complete. By offering
bundied solutions that also include phones along with
the server and applications, we will make them even
more inviting. We've additionally reduced system
installation times and made return on investment more
readily identifiable, all to make our “pain-free” products
the solutions of unmistakable choice in mainstream
markets worldwide.

Leverage vertical customer solutions to
build market share. With a number of existing
customers in vertical markets such as business services,
financial institutions, healthcare and retail, Interactive
Intelligence is well positioned to expand its presence in
these industries. To ensure such growth, we've put
resources in place to more fully identify each sector’s
communications needs and maximize our products’
solution value. Interactive intelligence partners
established in vertical markets have also committed
to work with us in providing the best industry-specific
solutions available.

Continue to build and improve our global
partner network. We have established a network
of seasoned sales and technology partners. Looking
forward, we’re excited about opportunities to work
with new partners including SBC, Datacraft India,
and Microsoft resellers. Qur technology relationships
with hardware and other software companies that
provide important value to the customer will also
continue to gain in importance as our bundied
offerings become more popular worldwide.

Continue our leading technology position.
We expect to benefit as SIP gains strength as the

de facto standard for IP telephony. As a committed
SIP emissary, our company has had more to do with
IP telephony’s acceptance than perhaps any other, first
by offering inherent SIP capabilities in our software,
followed by our free SIP Proxy offering and the
advanced Interaction SIP Proxy™ Server introduced
in Q1 2004. Add the growing number of successful
SIP implementations among Interactive Intelligence’s
customers, and our IP telephony solutions look more
promising than ever as they continue to gain
momentum in enterprise markets.

Encouragingly, Interactive Intelligence held its own
throughout a year in which T spending was still
recovering. Now with 2004 upon us, and with
businesses beginning to spend again, it is the year
we set our sights on mainstream markets. By taking
our whole products to the markets where Interactive
Intelligence has demonstrated its proven solution,
we're confident we’ll reach our goals.

Bl © Lomr

Donald E. Brown, M.D.
President & Chief Executive Officer

Delivering a Whole Product Solution
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PART L
Item 1. Business.
Company Overview

We are a leading provider of software applications for contact centers and are leveraging that
leadership position to provide mission critical voice over Internet protocol (VoIP) applications to
enterprises. We sell into four distinct markets, all of whose needs are increasing for VoIP-based
systems:

e Contact Centers

° Enterprise [P Telephony

e Unified Communications, and
° Self-service Automation.

Qur principal competitors are hardware vendors who offer proprietary approaches using a
combination of phone systems, call distributors, voicemail systems, and interactive voice response (IVR)
systems equipment. We offer a software solution based on Microsoft Windows that resides on a
customer’s network and uses an open communications protocol called Session Initiation Protocol (SIP)
for VoIP networking. This open approach typically results in lower overall costs for phone devices,
system maintenance, and customer networking. Our software applications are also pre-integrated to
many popular business applications such as financial, customer relationship management (CRM) and
enterprise resource planning (ERP) software, thereby automating and tracking business transactions to
customer interactions. We are best known for our bundled suite of contact center applications that
includes multi-media customer contact management for phone calls, Web chat, Web callback, e-mail
queuing, customer defined queues, and integrated speech recognition applications.

We market our software applications around the globe both directly to customers and through over
135 value-added resellers. Our software applications are installed in over 30 countries and are available
in 12 languages. We began licensing our software in 1997 and have experienced revenue growth from
$1.6 million in 1997 to $51.5 million in 2003. Resellers and customers are certified through our
professional education center and supported by a global support group.

We were formed in 1994 as an Indiana corporation, and we maintain our executive offices at
7601 Interactive Way, Indianapolis, IN 46278. Our telephone number is 317-872-3000. We are on the
Web at http://www.inin.com. Our periodic and current reports and all amendments to those reports
required to be filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934 are available free of charge through the investor relations e-mail address located on our Website.

Industry Overview and Current Developments

The continued growth of high-speed Internet access and Internet-based commerce is causing
organizations in many industries to shift from primarily phone-based communications to multi-media
interaction management technology as a means of gaining a competitive advantage, increasing efficiency
and providing better service. As a result, the communications industry is experiencing demand for new
interaction management solutions. We have developed our software applications to provide solutions
for the following major trends affecting interaction management.

Growth of Internet-based Interactions

In addition to more traditional communications media such as telephone, voicemail, and fax, the
growth of the Internet has expanded the number and complexity of communications media to include
e-mail, Internet chat sessions, Web callback requests and voice over Internet conversations. Companies




are increasingly utilizing the Internet as an important channel for sales, distribution and customer
service. Because of the use of the Internet for communications, these companies are deploying e-mail
management and Web collaboration products in order to provide advanced customer service. Most
companies currently interact through these media using separate devices, resulting in inefficient
communication. As a result, organizations are re-evaluating their existing systems in order to address
the requirements for a more complete communications environment.

Convergence of Voice and Data

Voice traffic is increasingly moving from traditional, circuit-switched networks and devices to
networks and devices based on the popular TCP/IP. This transition is referred to as the VoIP
movement. Traditional PBXs are being replaced by so-called “softswitches” that are provided by us and
other vendors such as Cisco Systems, Inc. (Cisco) and 3Com Corporation. This transition is causing
many organizations to look for application platforms that can work effectively with these new IP-based
systems to provide a wide range of communication services.

Evolution of Call Centers to Contact Centers

In an increasingly competitive environment, businesses are attempting to differentiate themselves
with superior customer service and support. They are also improving the level of service they offer over
the Internet. Historically, businesses have had a call center dedicated to inbound and outbound phone
calls. With the increase in multi-media communications in customer service and sales, organizations
have begun implementing formal contact centers, which are designed to manage voice-based and
Internet-based customer interactions. Historically, call centers often required organizations to purchase
several different communications devices such as a PBX, an IVR system, an automated call distributor
(ACD), a predictive dialer and a call logger to simply handle voice-based interactions, and then spend
time and money to integrate these disparate devices.

Increasing Need to Integrate Telecommunications and Information Systems

Typically, telecommunications systems and information systems have been separate and distinct. To
more effectively and efficiently interact, both internally and externally, businesses need to seamlessly
access and utilize these two systems. Products referred to as computer telephony integration (CTT)
middleware have been designed to integrate various types of telecommunications devices with
information technology. For example, an application “screen pop” makes a window pop up on a
contact center agent’s monitor with information about a call at the same time that the agent’s
telephone or headset rings. This allows the agent to see all the information, usually provided by a
packaged CRM or ERP application, necessary to assist the customer. With CTI middleware, even
simple applications, such as screen pops, can be difficult and expensive to implement.

We believe the traditional approach of using CTI middleware software products to integrate
communications and information systems suffers from a number of fundamental problems.
Implementing this type of solution is both expensive and time consuming, and the total cost of
ownership over time is high due to the multiple points of configuration, administration and
maintenance. Modification and management of a traditional integrated infrastructure are also difficult
since each device is independently configured by different vendors. For instance, hiring a new agent
may require configuring a new extension in the PBX, defining a new mail box in the voicemail system
and creating a new agent entry in the ACD. This process is expensive, time consuming, and may even
result in information being lost or inconsistently entered into each device. We also believe that this
traditional multi-device approach makes it more difficult for businesses to interact over the Internet
and requires additional devices and more integration, further complicating the current situation,




Migration from Voicemail to Unified Messaging

When voicemail, faxes and e-mail are combined into a unified “in-box” accessible via computer or
telephone, the result is referred to as unified messaging. Although available for over ten years, unified
messaging has yet to penetrate organizations extensively, despite the proven productivity gains.
However, as many voicemail and fax systems reach end-of-life and as e-mail as a communication
medium continues to gain momentum, businesses increasingly upgrade to unified messaging solutions
that integrate with existing PBXSs, are VoIP telephony ready, and natively support “best-of-breed”
e-mail and directory servers, which are already part of most information technology and
telecommunication infrastructures.

Target Markets

Since the general communications technology marketplace is very diverse, we have specifically
targeted the following broad markets with our solutions.

Contact Centers

We have been at the forefront of the transition from multi-box CTI-based call center technology to
pre-integrated bundled contact center suite solutions. Our self-service and agent-based solutions
intelligently route, monitor, record, administer and report on phone, fax, e-mail and Web contacts
across one or multiple locations.

Enterprise IP Telephony

We are leveraging our strength in the contact center market to provide VoIP in the form of an
[P-based PBX (IP-PBX) that meets the needs of the entire organization. Qur application software is
especially well suited to meet the growing communications demands of most enterprises and especially
those based on Microsoft technology. We specifically target distributed organizations and those with
mobile and remote workforces wishing to improve organizational efficiency and productivity. The
IP-PBX market is a high growth market that is growing at over a 50% rate according to Gartner
Research Group. We target organizations that can benefit from an IP-PBX or combined IP-PBX and
contact center solution and have 50 to 5,000 stations.

Unified Communications

The change in manufacturers for traditional voicemail systems, along with the popularity of unified
communications, has opened the door for us to move into the unified communications market. Many
existing voicemail systems are considered antiquated and are nearing end-of-life. As a result, companies
are evaluating their messaging requirements. With the popularity of e-mail as well as mobile
communications technology, businesses require more than simple voice messaging. Consequently, we
offer the ability to deliver live communications to desk phones, mobile phones, and other telephony-
enabled devices and only resort to offering voicemail to a caller when the called party is truly
unavailable. We feel we are well positioned in this market with an open software approach that is also
VoIP-enabled.

Self-Service Automation

We offer customer self-service solutions such as speech-enabled IVR and e-mail and Web
self-service technology that help organizations reduce cost while standardizing customer service options.
Popular applications for self-service include order status inquiry, transportation route information and
automated banking and financial transactions.




Interactive Intelligence Single System Approach, Preducts and Customer Support and Services
Single System Approach

We provide a comprehensive set of communications and interaction management solutions that
require little or no integration. Our Interaction Center Platform®-based products are capable of
processing thousands of interactions per hour, including telephone calls, e-mails, faxes, voicemail
messages, Internet chat sessions, Web collaboration and call-back requests and VoIP calls.

We believe that the differentiating characteristics of our software applications enable our
customers to more effectively communicate and interact with their constituencies at a lower total cost
of ownership compared to the use of traditional computer telephony integration products. The strategic
advantages of our single system approach are described in the following sections.

Standards-based VolP Capabilities

Our software applications incorporate native VoIP capabilities based on SIP an international
standard developed by the Internet Engineering Task Force (IETF) and adopted by a number of
industry leaders including Microsoft Corporation (Microsoft). These SIP capabilities allow our products
to make use of a wide variety of telephones, gateways, and other telephony devices from many different
vendors.

Greater Ability to Utilize the Internet

Our products allow organizations to offer Internet-based interaction options to their customers.
These interaction options include e-mail, text chat, Web collaboration and callback requests, and VoIP
calls. Such options are critical for effective e-commerce and Web-based customer service.

Broader Range of Functions

Unlike traditional systems that require customers to purchase separate products to attain broader
functionality, our products offer a broad, integrated suite of communications features, including
telephony, e-mail processing, automatic call distribution, interactive voice response, inbound and
outbound fax, conferencing, call recording, call monitoring and Web interaction and event processing.
Our products also include facilities that allow supervisors to obtain numerous reports and to view
communications statistics in real time. We believe that, collectively, these capabilities allow our
customers to improve customer satisfaction and increase internal efficiency.

Reduced Need to Integrate Disparate Technologies

Traditional communications systems generally require significant integration efforts for the
different components to work together effectively. This integration often involves the purchase of
expensive hardware, middleware and services. Our software application pre-assembles all of the
necessary components, allowing customers to concentrate their efforts on improving business
operations. Additionally, our software applications can be used to supplement the capabilities of a PBX
to provide Web-based interaction management, unified messaging, IVR or departmental contact center
services.

Open Architecture and Greater Compatibility with Leading Technologies

Traditional telecommunications devices are based on proprietary, closed architecture, which often
limits the customer’s ability to change or customize the products. Frequently, even simple changes such
as adding a new employee or changing an employee’s location require intervention by the vendor.

Our solutions are built around industry standard hardware and software components such as Intel
Corporation (Intel) microprocessors and the Microsoft Windows operating system. Our open




architecture allows customers to easily configure our software applications to meet their specific
communications needs and to make hardware or software modifications as necessary. For example, if a
customer needs more space for voicemail recordings, the customer can simply purchase a larger disk
drive on the open market. Our products also interoperate easily with popular information technology
products, including:

o E-mail servers, including Microsoft Exchange Server, Lotus Notes, Novell GroupWise and
SunOne Messaging Server;

o Database systems, including those from Oracle Corporation, Sybase, Inc., Microsoft and
International Business Machines Corporation (IBM);

° Mainframe systems, including those that support 3270 and 5250 terminal emulation;

° Web servers, including those from Microsoft, America Online, Inc. and Apache Digital
Corporation;

» Network management systems, including Hewlett-Packard Company’s HP OpenView, 1BM Tivoli
NetView and Computer Associates International, Inc.’s Unicenter TNG;

= CRM and ERP systems, including those from Microsoft, Siebel Systems, Inc. (Siebel),
Peoplesoft, Inc., SAP Corporation (SAP), Pivotal Corporation, E.piphany, Inc. and Onyx
Software Corporation; and

s Enterprise directories, including Microsoft Active Directory, Novell NDS e-Directory and
Sun/iPlanet Directory Server.

Lower Total Cost of Ownership

We believe that our software applications can result in a lower total cost of ownership in
comparison to traditional communication systems with similar functionality, which typically consist of
multiple components. Qur software applications are specifically built to reduce administration and
configuration while delivering standard communications features. This results in a lower total cost of
ownership due to the reduced training and time and expense typically required to maintain a multiple
component interaction management system.

Greater Ability to Customize Communications to Meet Specific Needs

While our software applications can be deployed quickly with minimal configuration, organizations
can also customize many aspects of their communications processing using our graphical application
generator, Interaction Designer®. This means our applications can serve as a platform upon which
organizations can build highly tailored communications processes for their customers, employees or
other users. It also means that our customers need to learn only a single tool in order to customize
their dial plans, call distribution rules, IVR menus, Web services, voicemail systems, fax applications
and other communications applications.

Products

We have developed a comprehensive line of software applications to serve the communications and
interaction needs of our customers. We currently market and license the following products.

Customer Interaction Center® or CIC

CIC is a bundled software communications application suite specifically designed to meet the
demanding performance requirements of customer-driven organizations and contact centers. CIC
enables organizations to easily combine all types of customer interactions such as phone, fax, e-mail




and Web contact. CIC includes the functionality of a PBX, ACD, IVR, fax server, voicemail/unified
messaging system and digital recording system and includes application screen pop, support for various
Web services, contact history tracking and the Interaction Designer graphical application builder. CIC’s
comprehensive all-in-one communications architecture eliminates the cost and time associated with
multi-vendor integration found in traditional contact center environments and also meets the enterprise
telecommunications, IP telephony and messaging needs of small to mid-sized organizations. CIC can be
deployed at a single location or implemented as a multi-site communications solution.

Enterprise Interaction Center® or EIC

We are leveraging our recognized technology leadership position for contact center applications to
provide mission critical VoIP-based business communications solutions for the entire enterprise with the
EIC IP-PBX which provides a complete VoIP solution based on the Microsoft platform and Intel’s
Netstructure Host Media Processing software. EIC is specifically targeted at small to medium sized
businesses based on Microsoft software. Our software applications are an alternative to proprietary
phone systems and vendor lock-in and are based on the industry-accepted open protocol SIP to lower
costs of devices and VoIP networking. Unlike Cisco Systems, Inc. (Cicso), Nortel Networks Corporation
(Nortel), Avaya Inc. (Avaya) and other PBX hardware manufacturers, EIC is pre-integrated with
Microsoft applications such as Windows network operating system, Microsoft Exchange, SQL Server,
Great Plains and Microsoft MS-CRM.

Communitée™

Communité is a unified messaging solution that connects to an existing PBX switching architecture
and replaces legacy voicemail systems. It integrates with corporate e-mail systems such as Microsoft
Exchange, iPlanet, and Lotus Notes to place voicemail messages and faxes into each user’s e-mail
inbox. Users can access their messages by means of an e-mail client, a Web browser or a touch-tone
phone. In addition to these unified messaging capabilities, Communité provides one-number “follow

me” features, call recording, and other personal communication management features. Communité also
supports the customer’s choice of telephony interface and allows the customer to migrate to VoIP
telephony now or in the future. This investment protection is highly important to companies who are
replacing outdated voicemail systems and will soon be faced with migration to VoIP-based phone
systems.

Interaction Recorder®

Interaction Recorder is a complementary product that enhances CIC’s, EIC’s and Communité’s
on-demand recording capabilities by providing recording management for organizations, such as contact
centers that generate large numbers of recordings. Interaction Recorder not only manages phone calls
but also e-mails, fax documents and Web chat sessions. Recording rules select which interactions to
record. Information related to the recording, such as customer name, account number and transactions
selected, is indexed in a database to be used for recording categorization and ad-hoc queries.
Interaction Recorder also compresses recordings to reduce storage requirements. Interaction Recorder
allows organizations to periodically archive groups of recordings onto CDs, DVDs or other media and
provides a user interface from which supervisors and other employees can later search for particular
recordings and access them at any time.

Interaction Dialer®

Interaction Dialer is an outbound campaign management solution that is complementary to CIC.
Interaction Dialer provides call list management to define what numbers to automatically dial and to
determine how outbound work shouid be processed. Interaction Dialer calculates exactly how many
calls to place and when to make them, plus provides answering machine detection and other call




analysis techniques, in order to maximize agent talk time. When an outbound call connects to an agent,
Interaction Dialer automatically pops a campaign script displaying customer information to lead the
agent through the call. Outbound calls can also be “blended” with inbound calls to further maximize
agent productivity. Alternatively, calls can be automatically processed (such as to leave a voice message,
send a fax document, etc.) without involving agents.

Interaction Director™

Interaction Director provides intelligent call routing across sites for multi-site contact centers.
Interaction Director collects near real-time information from connected CIC systems, including current
expected hold times at each site, queue lengths, number of agents available and specific skills available.
It then distributes incoming calls based on this information and configured routing rules, which are
usually based on specifically defined service level goals. Interaction Director supports carrier-based
pre-call routing via certified interfaces to AT&T Corporation, MCI Communications Corp. and Sprint
Corporation, and it also supports post-call routing between locations using CIC.

e-FAQ™

e-FAQ is an e-mail and Web self-service solution that allows organizations to quickly and easily
make use of knowledge and content in the form of “Frequently Asked Questions” (FAQs). e-FAQ is
used to turn static FAQ documents into interactive, searchable FAQs. The software application uses
advanced artificial intelligence and linguistic techniques to examine inquiries, look for matches in a
database of frequently asked questions, and automatically respond if an appropriate match is found.
e-FAQ also allows the user to add knowledge by simply entering common questions and related
answers via a Web browser interface. e-FAQ seamlessly integrates CIC, EIC and Communité to allow
agents and business users to directly access frequently asked questions and answers while on the phone
or responding to an e-mail or Web interaction, thus improving productivity and the consistency of
responses.

Mobilite™

Mobilité is a platform for the rapid development and deployment of business applications that runs
on wireless PDAs such as RIM Blackberries, Palm operating system devices and Pocket PC devices.
Mobilité includes an engine that runs on the user’s PDA and an application server. Graphical tools
allow developers to design the user interface and application flow. The Mobilité server can access
databases, mainframes, e-mail systems, on-line corporate directories, Web services and other corporate
information technology assets. In addition, it can generate phone calls and otherwise integrate with
PBXs and VoIP systems. Mobilité applications can be deployed on any supported wireless device and
are fully encrypted for end-to-end security. Applications can be updated at any time and updates are
automatically distributed to users whenever they run an application, eliminating version control and
software distribution problems.

Vocalite™

Vocalité is a speech-enabled IVR system. The software application leverages the capabilities of the
Interaction Center Platform underlying all of our products to allow organizations to create a variety of
self-service applications. Callers can make use of touch-tones or spoken responses to navigate menus
and perform transactions. Applications can access databases, mainframes, e-mail systems, on-line
corporate directories, Web services and other information sources. A graphical application generator
allows developers to quickly create and modify applications. Applications can be deployed without
taking the server out of production and can run on multiple servers for scalability and fault tolerance.




Interaction SIP Proxy™

Interaction SIP Proxy is SIP proxy server software compliant with the latest specification of the SIP
standard and supporting all SIP methods and status codes. As a result, it functions as an intelligent
router for various SIP-enabled devices such as SIP gateways, phones and computing platforms. It also
supports an unlimited number of routing entries and destination entries with built-in retry capabilities
for critical fault tolerance.

Customer Support and Services

We recognize the importance of offering quality service and support to our resellers, partners, and
customers. Our resellers and other partners provide some valuable initial support and services to our
customers. We provide a wide range of services and support to all of these groups, including customer
loyalty, technical support, education services and global professional services. These services are
described in more detail in the following sections.

Customer Loyalty

Customer Loyalty offers account management to customers and resellers. Customer Loyalty is
responsible for coordinating issues within our internal structure and handling customer problems,
including following up on the root cause of the problem to improve our business practices and our
software applications.

Technical Support

Our Technical Support staff offers global technical support for our resellers and customers
24 hours a day, seven days a week via phone, fax, e-mail and our Web site. Our engineers are located
at our headquarters in Indianapolis, and in the United Kingdom, the Netherlands, Australia, Malaysia,
Japan and Korea. We utilize our CIC product, leveraged with technologies such as knowledge base,
CRM and the Web, to maximize the effectiveness of our support services and to offer superior services.

Educational Services

Educational Services provides technical certification and advanced instruction via on-site courses,
classroom presentations, and Web-based training. Education Services develops and maintains course
curriculum for formal certification programs such as sales, product installation and troubleshooting,
system administration and custom design. Web-based courses offer enhanced topics such as reporting,
system administration, and computer-based user training. Resellers are required to maintain
certifications to sell and support our products.

Global Professional Services

Global Professional Services offers project management and implementation services. This group
handles strategic accounts and augments reseller expertise on advanced offerings such as predictive
dialing, speech recognition and third party CRM integrations. A series of packaged customer solutions
are available from this group such as integration to SAP, Siebel, and Microsoft MS-CRM. These
solutions allow partners to quickly install sophisticated applications for customers.

Business Strategy

Our primary business objective is to leverage our leadership in the contact center marketplace with
interaction management software in order to expand into the mainstream enterprise. Our strategy for
achieving this mission is four-fold as described below.
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Continue our Leading Technology Position

We have significant expertise in contact center, telecommunications, software, and Internet
technologies. We use this expertise to improve our product line with product functionality,
maintainability, and scalability to differentiate our offerings in the markets we serve. We continue to
improve and add to our VoIP offerings by leveraging the SIP protocol. This allows us to offer a single,
open software solution for a wide variety of business communications needs such as IP-based contact
centers and IP-PBX for enterprises. Our applications provide simplified system administration through
a single point of administration for a variety of add-on modules such as recording management,
predictive dialing, and multi-site call routing for large-scale contact centers. We are also continually
improving our technology to address the requirements of large-scale customers for voicemail
replacement and unified communications.

Package Whole Product Solutions

For all markets served, our strategy is to appeal to a broader audience of customers and partners
by packaging whole solutions for each product. For customers and partners this means simplified
configuration and pricing, easier ordering, pre-packaged hardware and software and easy to understand
support options. Hardware packaging makes the system easier for our partners to license and support
by offering pre-determined system sizes of servers, telephony resource boards, and third-party devices
such as SIP-compliant gateways and telephones. The strategy of system packaging means enhanced
competitiveness against proprietary hardware-oriented companies.

Leverage Industry-Specific Solutions to Build Market Share

We have customers in many industry groups. Our strategy is to utilize the knowledge gained and
relationships we have built with our current customers and partners in significant industry segments to
build industry-specific market share. Partners with specific industry expertise are encouraged to package
solutions and license through our entire partner base. Industry solutions include offerings for credit
unions, government, healthcare, enterprise virtual office applications, and banking, as well as many
others.

Continue to Build and Improve our Global Partner Network

We have strategic marketing and technology partners, distribution and reseller partners, and
original equipment manufacturer (OEM) partners. Strategic marketing and technology partners such as
Intel, Microsoft, Nuance Communications, Inc., Polycom, Inc. (Polycom) and Aculab USA, Inc. help us
gain advantage through differentiated product offerings. For instance, we introduced the first SIP-based
IP-PBX based on Intel’'s Host Media Processing software in 2003. Tight integration to Microsoft
products differentiates our contact center and enterprise offerings. The Polycom relationship offers our
customers choice of quality VoIP station devices.

We use master distributors to build our partner network globally. Master distributors attract and
support partners with software and hardware packages.

Research and Development

Since leveraging technology is part of our strategic position, we continue to invest a substantial
percentage of our revenue in research and development. Our development group is comprised of
professionals with backgrounds in telecommunications, software and hardware from leading companies
such as Microsoft, Lucent Technologies Inc., and Nortel. The combination of diverse technical and
communications expertise contributes to our competitive advantage with a differentiated technology
approach.




We are both a Microsoft Certified Developer as well as a Microsoft Certified Solutions Provider.
These designations provide us early access to Microsoft technology and the opportunity to develop
products more quickly and which effectively interoperate with Microsoft products.

Research and development expenses were $13.4 million, $15.1 million and $15.6 million in 2003,
2002 and 2001, respectively. The group is managed in technical teams with formal processes for
enhancements, release management, technical reviews and quality assurance.

Global Distribution and Sales
Direct Sales

We license direct in the U.S. and Canada primarily to the Fortune 1000 National accounts. We
utilize our regional sales representatives as well as an inside sales force to generate potential
opportunities in this market. Customers that directly licensed our software applications in 2003 included
Peoplesoft, Chartway Federal Credit Union, University of Wisconsin, University of Texas, iTouchpoint,
and Lockheed Martin.

OEM

We have severa] OEM partners who sell and market our software applications as part of their
product line. These partners leverage the Interaction Center platform technology to offer value to their
customer base. OEM partners include Hitachi Information Technology in Japan and Perimeter
Technology and Reynolds and Reynolds in the U.S.

Distribution

Master distributors attract and support reseller partners. Master distributors typically offer value-
added services to reseller partners to augment their services organizations. We currently partner with
master distributors in the U.S,, Latin America and the United Kingdom.

Reseller partners sign directly with us or through the master distribution program. We have over
135 resellers globally with a presence in over 30 countries. We believe that we are unique in the
industry with a prestigious network of “converged” resellers who understand voice and data networking.
We continue to expand this partner network to cover geographic and product markets.

In Europe, the Middle East and Africa (EMEA) we sell and distribute solely through partners
across the region, with partners in the United Kingdom, Germany, the Netherlands, Sweden, Norway,
South Africa, Turkey, Saudi Arabia and Israel. Cur EMEA corporate headquarters are located near
London, England.

Our Asia/Pacific (APAC) region also sells and distributes solely through partners across the region,
with partners in Japan, Korea, India, Malaysia, Australia, the Philippines and China. Our APAC
corporate headquarters are located in Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia.

Marketing

We have a formal marketing group that is organized by three departments: market
communications, corporate marketing, and product marketing. Marketing staff are located in the
United States, Malaysia, and the United Kingdom.

Market communications manages public relations, technology analysts and trade publications. In
order to increase our market awareness, we instituted an annual consultant/technology analyst summit
that in 2003 was attended by Gartner, Yankee Group, Vanguard, and many other significant analyst
firms.




Corporate marketing handles all brand awareness and lead generation activities including trade
shows, seminars, and Web-based marketing programs. This group leverages local and regional seminars
with joint partners such as Intel, Microsoft and Polycom to generate qualified leads for partners and
direct sales representatives. We also sponsor annual customer conferences and partner conferences.

Product marketing focuses on packaging products to meet market and competitive requirements
and working with our development group as well as hardware and software vendors, to ensure that a
complete solution is presented to the customer.

Customers

As of December 31, 2003, we had licensed our products to more than 1,100 active customers in
North America, Europe, the Asia/Pacific region, Central and South America, and South Africa,

including:

Financial Institutions

First Internet Bank of Indiana
AIG Credit Card
BankBoston

BMW Financial Services
Irwin Mortgage

Motorola Employee Credit
Union

Shinsei Bank

Student Loan Consolidation
Waterfield Mortgage

Technology Companies
Lockheed Martin
Made2Manage

OSI Software
Peoplesoft, Inc.
Seagate Technology

Government

New York Police Department
State of Alabama

State of California

State of Indiana

State of Kentucky

U.S. Department of Commerce
U.S. Patent and Trademark
Office

U.S. Postal Service

Healthcare

Abbott Laboratories

Blue Cross/Blue Shield of
Rochester

Clarian Health
Community Health

Eli Lilly

Hospital for Sick Children
Ross Products

St. Vincent Hospital

Retail

1-800-Contacts
1-800-Pet-Meds
Abercrombie & Fitch Co.
Dollar Tree Stores

The Finish Line

IKEA

Kohl’s Corporation
Trader Joe’s
Walgreen’s

Business Services

Century 21 Sheetz Realty
Ceridian Payroll Services
Cox Chio Publishing
Park Place Entertainment
Robert Half International
Robert Orr Sysco Food
Services

Sabre

Education

Brown University

Harvard University

Indiana University

Navy College Center

Ohio State

University of Michigan
University of North Carolina
University of Texas

No customer or reseller accounted for 10% or more of our revenues in 2003, 2002 or 2001.

Competition

The market for our software applications is highly competitive. Our competition varies depending
on the different market segments where we license our software applications. Gur main competitors in
the contact center market are Aspect Communications Corporation, Avaya, Cisco, Concerto
Software, Inc. and Nortel. Significant enterprise IP telephony competitors include 3Com
Communications, Inc., Alcatel, Avaya, Cisco, Nortel and Siemens AG. In the unified communications
market we compete mainly with Avaya, Cisco and Nortel. IVR competitors are primarily Avaya, Edify
Corporation, Intervoice, Inc. and Nortel. We also compete with other new or recent entrants in each

marketplace.




Intellectual Property and Other Proprietary Rights
To protect our proprietary rights, we rely primarily on a combination of:
° copyright, patent, trade secret and trademark laws;
o confidentiality agreements with employees and third parties; and

o protective contractual provisions such as those contained in license and other agreements with
consultants, suppliers, strategic partners, resellers and customers.

Employees

As of February 29, 2004, we had 335 employees worldwide, including 109 in research aad
development, 102 in client services, 88 in sales and marketing and 36 in administration. Our future
performance depends in significant part upon the continued service of our key sales, marketing,
technical and senior management personnel and our continuing ability to attract and retain highly
qualified personnel. Competition for these personnel is intense and we cannot assure you that we will
be successful in attracting or retaining these personnel in the future.

We believe that we have a corporate culture that attracts highly qualified and motivated
employees. We emphasize teamwork, flexible work arrangements, local decision-making and open
communications. Every employee has been granted stock options. None of our employees is
represented by a labor union. We have not experienced any work stoppages. We have had certain
Company-initiated workforce reductions (See Note 13 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in
Item 8 of this Form 10-K). We consider our relations with our current employees to be good.

Item 2. Properties

We moved our corporate headquarters to a new 120,000 square foot office building in
Indianapolis, Indiana in April 2003. We lease the building and as of December 31, 2003, the lease
required payments of $33.6 million over the remaining term of the lease, which expires on March 31,
2018. For the previous headquarters office we are obligated to pay lease payments through February 29,
2004 for certain parts of the building and February 12, 2005 for a smaller portion of the building. The
remaining lease payments related to our previous headquarters as of December 31, 2003 totaled
$360,000.

We also lease space for our various sales, services and development offices located throughout the
United States and in many of the international markets that we serve. All of these leases are
short-term leases.

We believe that all of our facilities, including our new corporate headquarters, are adequate and
well suited to our business. Because we moved our corporate headquarters before our lease on the
corporate offices previously occupied expired, we do have some additional capacity in Indianapolis,
Indiana. We have subleased some of this unutilized space. In addition, we are actively pursuing a
subleasing arrangement for a small portion in our new corporate headquarters.

See Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—
Liquidity and Capital Resources for further discussion.
Item 3. Legal Proceedings

From time to time we have received claims from competitors and other technology providers
claiming that our technology infringes their proprietary rights. One such claim has resulted in a legal
proceeding being filed against us, which is described below. We cannot assure you that these matters
can be resolved amicably without litigation, or that we will be able to enter into licensing arrangements
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on terms and conditions that would not have a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition or results of operations.

In July 2002, we received a letter from a consulting firm that has been retained by a
telecommunication technology provider to develop and implement a licensing program based on the
technology provider’s patents. The consulting firm believes that we have infringed on the technology
provider’s propriety rights and therefore feels that a licensing agreement between us and the
technology provider is appropriate. We believe that the technology subject to this claim is not
significant to the software we license. We believe that this matter can be resolved without a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results of operations, however we cannot provide
assurance as to the outcome.

In December 2002, we received a letter from one of our resellers requesting indemnification
related to a request that the reseller had received for indemnification from a customer. The customer
had received a lefter from a third party indicating that the customer may be infringing patents held by
the third party. To date, our patent counsel has not determined the validity or the applicability of these
patents as they relate to our products or whether the reseller is entitled to indemnification. We believe
that this matter can be resolved without a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition
or results of operations, however we cannot provide assurance as to the outcome.

On September 30, 2003, Recursion Software, Inc. filed suit in Dallas County Court in Dallas, Texas
against us alleging breach of contract and money due under claims of quantum meruit and unjust
enrichment. Recursion claims that we incorporated Recursion Software into one of our products in
breach of the underlying license. No dollar amount has been stated in the action. We believe that we
have strong defenses to the claims and intend to vigorously defend against the action. We believe that
this matter can be resolved without a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or
results of operations, however we cannot provide assurance as to the outcome.

In November 2002, we received a notification from the French government as a result of a tax
audit that had been conducted encompassing the years 1998, 1999, 2000 and 2001. These assessments
claim various taxes are owed related to Value Added Tax (“VAT”) and corporation taxes in addition to
what has previously been paid and accrued. As of December 31, 2003, the assessment related to VAT
was approximately $2.9 million and the assessment related to corporation taxes was approximately
$378,000. Qur tax counsel has assessed the possibility of us paying the assessment related to VAT as
remote and the assessment related to corporation taxes as reasonably possible, therefore we have not
accrued for these amounts. We are appealing the assessments, but cannot assure you that these matters
will be resolved without litigation or that we will not have to pay some or all of the assessments.

From time to time, we are also involved in certain legal proceedings in the ordinary course of
conducting our business. While the ultimate liability pursuant to these actions cannot currently be
determined, we believe these legal proceedings will not have a material adverse effect on our financial
position or results of operations. Litigation in general, and intellectual property litigation in particular,
can be expensive and disruptive to normal business operations. Moreover, the results of complex legal
proceedings are difficult to predict.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders.

None.




PART 1L
Ttem 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters.

Our common stock began trading on The NASDAQ Stock Market® under the symbol ININ on
September 23, 1999. Prior to that date, there was no public market for the common stock. The
following table sets forth, for the fiscal quarters indicated, the high and low sales prices of our common
stock as reported by The NASDAQ Stock Market.

High Low

2002

First qUarter . . .. ..ot e e $9.00 $4.54
Second quarter . ... . e 510 250
Third qUarter ... ... i e 352 250
Fourth quarter .. ...... .. e 3.60  1.49
2003

First qUarter . . ... ..ottt e 380 253
Second QUAITET . . .\ ot it e e 403 288
Third QUArtET . . .. .ttt e e e 370 274
Fourth quarter ....... ... . i i e 6.70  2.67

As of March 15, 2004, we had 149 shareholders of record of our common stock. In addition, we
believe we had approximately 4,200 beneficial owners, whose shares of common stock are held in the
names of brokers, dealers and clearing agencies.

We have never paid cash dividends on our capital stock and do not expect to pay cash dividends in
the foreseeable future.

On December 16, 2003, we issued 2,000 shares of common stock to Randall L. Tobias, a former
director, in recognition of his service as a member of our Board of Directors. These shares were not
registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and were exempt from registration
requirements pursuant to Section 4(2) thereof.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data.

The following selected consolidated financial data is qualified in its entirety by, and should be read
in conjunction with, our Consolidated Financial Statements and the Notes thereto and with
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations contained

elsewhere in this Form 10-K.

Consolidated Statement of Operations Data:

Revenues:
Software . ......... ... . ...
SEIVICES . o oo i

Totalrevenues. . ......... ... ... .. .c....

Cost of revenues:
Software . ... ... .
SeIVICES & v v v e e

Total cost of revenues . .................
Grossprofit. ............ ... .. i

Operating expenses:
Sales and marketing .. .......... ... .. ....
Research and development ................
General and administrative . . ... ...........
Restructuring and other charges . ...........

Total operating expenses ................

Operating loss .. ...t
Interest income, net . . ... ... ..

Loss before income taxes ...................
Incometaxes . ....... ..o i e

Netloss. . .o oo e

Net loss per share—basic and diluted . .........
Shares used to compute net loss per share. . ... ..

Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:

Cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments .
Working capital ........ ... ... ...,
Total @ssets . ...
Longtermdebt ........... ... ... ........
Total shareholders’ equity . . .. ...............

Year Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001 2600 1999
(In thousands, except per share data)
$26,323  $28,323 $ 31,321 § 16,784 $14,231
25,189 19,483 16,625 10,475 4,850
51,512 47,806 47,946 27,259 19,081
1,190 986 959 540 194
12,451 12,123 13,430 10,118 5,728
13,641 13,109 14,389 10,658 5,922
37,871 34,697 33,557 16,601 13,159
20,782 21,022 21,987 16,596 10,175
13,443 15,142 15,616 10,835 6,967
6,027 5,606 6,786 5,158 2,773
3,440 774 1,056 — —
43692 42,544 45,445 32,589 19,915
(5821) (7,847) (11,888) (15,988) (6,756)
163 412 1,169 1,108 (361)
(5,658) (7435) (10,719) (14,880) (7,117
211 230 271 180 —
$(5,869) $(7,665) $(10,990) $(15,060) $(7,117)
$ (0.38) $ (0.50) $ (0.73) $ (1.06) $ (0.62)
15,627 15,423 15,058 14,171 11,469
December 31,
2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
(In thousands)

$15,469 $15244 $22,084 $ 13,721 $23,365
(2,667) 352 5,155 50 10,709
33,259 35,166 43,508 34,453 32,370
— — — — 377
3,791 8,984 15,817 10,358 24,155




Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operaticns.
Forward-Looking Information

Certain statements in this Form 10-K contain “forward-looking” information (as defined in
Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934, as amended) that involves risks and uncertainties which may cause actual results to differ
materially from those predicted in the forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements can
often be identified by their use of such verbs as “expects,” “anticipates,” and “believes” or similar verbs
or conjugations of such verbs. If any of our assumptions on which the statements are based prove
incorrect or should unanticipated circumstances arise, our actual results could materially differ from
those anticipated by such forward-looking statements. The differences could be caused by a number of
factors or combination of factors, including, but not limited to, the “Factors that may affect our future
operating results” described herein.

Overview

We are a leading provider of software applications for contact centers and hope to leverage that
leadership position to provide mission critical VoIP applications to enterprises. Our customers are in a
wide variety of fields including financial institutions, government, healthcare and retail, among others.
We are a global software provider with presence in North America, EMEA and APAC.

Finamcial Highlights

In the initial years after we began licensing our software applications, our revenue growth was
substantial. In the past two years, we have seen a decrease in worldwide spending on technology given
the global economic slowdown, and as a result, our revenue growth has diminished. The information
below shows our total revenues and percentage growth from the previous year since sales commenced
(revenues in millions).

Year Revenues % Growth
2 $51.5 8%
2002 . 47.8 0
2001 . e e e e 479 76
2000 . ... e e e e 27.3 43
1999 . e e 19.1 112
1908 . e e 9.0 467
1997 .« e 1.6 n/a

We have experienced a change in cur source of revenues with a shift from licensing software to a
greater proportion of our revenue from services, which include license renewals and maintenance. Our
software revenues have shifted from orders from new customers in 2001 to orders from existing
customers in 2003, as shown below in the percentage of revenues from contract licenses each year by
new and existing customers.

Year Ended
December 31,
03 2002 2001
Software licensed by new customers ................ ... ... 29% 38% 55%
Software licensed by existing customers . . .................. 71 62 45

We believe that during the economic downturn and resulting decrease in technology spending, it
became harder to market our products to new customers. Companies delayed changes to their systems

18




and continued to use technology that they had in place. However, we believe that once companies have
implemented our software and the personnel at these companies experience the capabilities and
efficiencies of our software, these companies are increasing their technology spending for our software.
Future licensing to new customers is dependent on the economy and whether companies will allocate
their resources to upgrade their systems.

Over the past three years our gross profits have increased and operating expenses have decreased.
These improvements have been a result of cost reduction and containment efforts that have included
staff reductions.

We incurred restructuring charges in 2003 of $3.4 million related to costs associated with staff
reductions, restructuring our EMEA resources and moving our worldwide headquarters to a new
building in Indianapolis, Indiana. We incurred restructuring charges of $774,000 in 2002 related
principally to costs associated with staff reductions and $1.1 million in 2001 related to the write-down
of an investment and costs associated with staff reductions.

We had approximately $15.5 million of cash and short-term investments as of December 31, 2003.
We had borrowings from a line of credit as of December 31, 2003 of $2.8 million, but have since repaid
the line in full. We believe that as our revenues grow and our expenses remain controlled, we will
increase our liquidity and position ourselves for growth in the future. If revenues remain stagnant or
decrease, our liquidity position may weaken, which would result in the need to raise capital.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

We believe there are three accounting policies that are important to understanding our historical
and future performance, as these policies affect the reported amounts of revenues and are the more
significant areas involving management’s judgments and estimates. These critical accounting policies
and estimates relate to revenue recognition, the allowance for doubtful accounts receivable and
research and development. These policies, and our procedures related to these policies, are described
below. Refer to Note 1 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for a further discussion of our
accounting policies.

Sources of Revenues and Revenue Recognition Policy

We generate software revenues from licensing the right to use our software applications and
generate services revenues primarily from annual renewal fees, annual maintenance fees, educational
services and professional services. We believe both of these sources of revenues are critical to our
financial statements because of their materiality to our statements as a whole and because of the
judgment required in determining if revenue recognition criteria have been met.

Software revenues

Our software license agreements are either annually renewable or perpetual. For any revenues to
be recognized from a software license agreement, the following criteria must be met:

* persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists;
* the fee is fixed or determinable;
* collection is probable; and

¢ delivery has occurred.

For an annually renewable software license agreement, upon meeting the revenue recognition
criteria above we recognize a majority of the initial license fees under these agreements as software




revenues ratably over the initial license period, which is generally 12 months and the remainder of the
initial license fees are recognized as services revenues over the same time period.

For a perpetual software license agreement, upon meeting the revenue recognition criteria above,
we immediately recognize as software revenues the amount of initial license fees if sufficient vendor
specific objective evidence exists to support allocating a portion of the total fee to the undelivered
elements of the arrangement. If sufficient vendor specific objective evidence of the fair value of the
undelivered elements does not exist, we recognize the initial license fee as software revenues ratably
over the initial term of the maintenance agreement, which is generally 12 months.

Services revenues

Services revenues are recognized for annually renewable software license agreements and perpetual
software license agreements. For annually renewable software license agreements, the allocation of the
initial order between software revenues and services revenues is based on actual renewal fee rates.
After the initial license period, our customers may renew their license agreement for an additional
period, typically 12 months, by paying a renewal fee. Under perpetual software license agreements, we
recognize annual maintenance fees as services revenues ratably over the post-contract maintenance
period, which is typically 12 months.

We also generate services revenues from other services that we provide to our resellers and
customers. These additional services revenues include fees for educational services and professional
services. Revenues from educational services, which consist of training courses for resellers and
customers, and professional services, which include implementing and customizing our products for a
customer, are typically recognized as the related services are performed.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts Receivable

We adjust our allowance for doubtful accounts for each reporting period based on a detailed
analysis of our accounts receivable at the end of that period. In estimating the allowance for doubtful

accounts, we primarily consider the age of the reseller’s or customer’s receivable and also consider the
creditworthiness of the reseller or customer, the economic conditions of the customer’s industry, and
general economic conditions, among other factors. If payment is not made timely, we contact the
customer or reseller to try to obtain payment. If this is not successful, we institute other collection
practices such as generating collection letters, involving our sales representatives and ultimately
terminating the customer’s or reseller’s access to future upgrades, licenses and customer support. Once
all collection efforts are exhausted, the receivable is written off against the allowance for doubtful
accounts.

Research and Development

Research and development expenditures are generally expensed as incurred. Based on our product
development process and technological feasibility, the date at which capitalization of development costs
may begin is established upon completion of a working model. Costs incurred between completion of
the working model and the point at which the product is ready for general release have been
insignificant. Through December 31, 2003, all research and development costs have been expensed.




Historical Results of Operations

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, our consolidated financial information
expressed as a percentage of total revenues:

Year Ended
December 31,

2003 2002 2001

Revenues:
SOftWaTE . . . e 51% 59% 65%
SETVICES . . vt e e e e ﬁ ﬂ 2
Total revenues . ... . e @ 199 l@
Cost of revenues:
Yo ) 22 1 o~ N 2 2 2
S ETVI S .« v v ot e e e e _2:1 2 _2§
Total cost Of TEVENUES . . v v v vttt et et et e ﬁ ﬂ _30;
Gross profit . ... ... . 74 7370
Operating expenses:
Sales and marketing . ... ... ... L 40 44 46
Research and development . . ......... ... ... ... ........ ... 26 32 33
General and administrative . . ... ... ... e 12 12 14
Restructuring and other charges . .................... ... . ... 712
Total operating eXpenses . . . .. ...ttt 8 89 9
Operating loss . . ... ... (11) (16) (25
Interest iNCOME, MEL. . . v vttt it et et e e e et e e = = ___2
Loss before income taxes . . . ... .. oi vttt (1) (16) (23)
Income taxes. . . ... .. e e e = = _1
Net JoSS « o e e ()% (16)% (24)%

Comparisen of Years Ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001
Revenues

Software Revenues

Year Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
($ in thousands)
SOftWATE TEVENUES . . . . i it e e e i it e $26,323  $28,323  $31,321
Change from prioryear. . .. ......... ... (M% (10)% 87%
Percentage of total revenue . . .. ......... ... ... . .... 51% 59% 65%

We license our software applications either as annually renewable or perpetual. We believe that the
decrease in software revenues is primarily due to a tightening of technology spending by companies due
to the global economic downturn. Software revenues have decreased as a percent of total revenues in
2003 and 2002. This is primarily due to the reduced software licensing by companies in general coupled
with the growing customer base that is renewing maintenance licenses, thereby increasing services

revenues.




Historically, we have primarily licensed our software using annually renewable licenses, which
generally recognize software revenues over 12 months. Therefore deferred software revenues at the end
of the year is a good indicator of what software revenues we will recognize in the following year related
to contracts previously signed. Deferred software revenues decreased $3.4 million from 2002 to 2003.
This decrease is due to a decrease in new and existing customers licensing our software applications,
which may lead to a decrease in software revenues in 2004 related to initially contracted annually
renewable licenses.

We began offering more perpetual licenses to our customers and therefore the recognition of
revenue on new contracts signed in 2004 may be accelerated compared to how revenue would have
been recognized under annually renewable licenses. Some customers prefer a perpetual license,
therefore the decision to offer customers perpetual licenses was a part of other actions by the Company
designed with the intent of improving the customer licensing process and accelerating the timing of
revenue recognition.

Services revenues

Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001
($ in thousands)
Services revenues $25,189  $19.483  $16,625
Change from prior year 29% 17% 59%
Percentage of total revenue 49% 41% 35%

The increase in services revenues was primarily due to increases in our growing installed base of
customers and related payments of annual license renewal fees and ongoing maintenance from
perpetual licenses. As we sign and install new customers, our services revenues should grow, if existing
customers continue to renew licenses and pay for maintenance on our software applications. The

percent of services revenues to total revenues grew due to the declining software revenues coupled with
the increasing services revenues.

Cost of Revenues

Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001
($ in thousands)

Cost of revenues:
Software $ 1,190 $ 086 $ 959
Services 12,451 12,123 13,430

$13,641  $13,109  $14,389
Change from prior year ‘ 4% 9% 35%

Software costs as a % of software revenue 5% 3% 3%
Services costs as a % of services revenue 49% 62% 81%

Costs of software consist primarily of product and software royalties paid to third parties for the
use of their technologies in our products and, to a lesser extent, software packaging costs, which
include product media, duplication and documentation. Cost of software can fluctuate depending on
which software applications are licensed to our customers, and the third party technology, if any, which
is licensed. The increase in the software costs as a percent of related software revenue in 2003 was due
to increased royalties for third party software. We expect that costs of software will increase slightly in




2004, in proportion to an expected increase in software revenues. This increase in software revenues
will depend on the global economy as well as our ability to effectively market our products.

Costs of services consist primarily of compensation expenses for technical support, education and
professional services personnel and other costs associated with supporting the Company’s resellers and
customers. The decrease in costs of services as a percent of related services revenue was a result of our
focus on cost control and increases in the related services revenue. We expect that costs of services will
decrease slightly in 2004 due mostly to decreased depreciation and relatively lower amounts of
outsourced services costs. We expect services revenues will increase faster than services costs, leading to
a decrease in services costs as a percent of services revenues in 2004.

Gross Profit
Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001
($ in thousands)
Gross profit . ..ot $37,871 $34,697 $33,557
Change from prioryear. .. ................... .. .... 9% 3% 102%
Percentage of total revenue . . . ........ ... ........... 74% 73% 70%

Our gross profit has steadily increased over the last three years. This is a result of increased total
revenues, mainly services revenues as our installed base of customers grew, as described previously, and
a reduction in cost of revenues as a percentage of total revenues, mainly resulting from our focus on
cost control, as described above.

Operating Expenses
Sales and Marketing
Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001
($ in thousands)
Sales and marketing expenses . ............ .. ... ..., $20,782  $21,022  $21,987
Change from prioryear. .. .................uero... (1)% 4% 32%
Percentage of total revenue . . . . ... ... ... ... L. 40% 44% 46%
Percentage of software revenue . ............ ... ...... 9% 74% 70%

Research and Development

Year Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
($ in thousands)
Research and development expenses . ................. $13,443 $15,142 $15,616
Change from prioryear. .. .. ... .. ... (1% 3)% 44%
Percentage of total revenue . . .. ... ... ... ... 26% 32% 33%

As technology spending among businesses decreased and our revenues remained constant in 2002,
we initiated cost reductions. A significant portion of this initiative was accomplished through
restructuring efforts in the United States and internationally (see Note 13 of Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements), which resulted in reduced compensation expenses in 2003 and 2002. Sales and
marketing and research and development expenses are comprised primarily of compensation expenses.
Therefore, because of the reduced compensation expense, sales and marketing and research and




development expenses have decreased both in 2003 and 2002. Both of these categories of expenses
have also decreased as a percentage of total revenue. Sales and marketing expenses only decreased 1%
in 2003 from 2002 due to one-time expenses incurred in 2003 mainly related to employee related
international taxes. These expenses are not expected to be incurred in 2004. We expect that in 2004
sales and marketing expenses and research and development expenses will decrease slightly due to a
decrease in depreciation as a portion of the Company’s fixed assets becomes fully depreciated.

General and Administrative

Year Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
($ in thousands)
General and administrative eXpenses . ... ................. $6,027  $5,606  $6,786
Change from prior year . . ... ... .....uerneneeennn.. 8% (17N% N%
Percentage of total revenue .. ........... ... ... ... ... .. 12% 12% 14%

General and administrative expenses are comprised of compensation expense and non-allocable
expenses including bad debt, legal and other professional service fees. General and administrative
expenses decreased in 2002 from 2001 as compensation expense decreased. These expenses increased in
2003 from 2002 due to several items including the hiring of a general counsel, increased directors and
officers’ insurance premiums and increased property taxes.

Restructuring and Other Charges

Year Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
($ in thousands)
Restructuring and other charges .. .......... .00 vuvruenn. $3,440  $774  $1,056
Change from prior year . ... ...... ... 344% (2%  100%
Percentage of total revenue . . ... ... ... oo 7% 2% 2%

Restructuring and other charges have fluctuated over the last three years. These expenses relate
primarily to staff reductions, both in the United States and internationally and, in 2001, write-down of
an investment. In addition, in 2003 the Company moved its corporate headquarters to a new location in
Indianapolis, Indiana, which resulted in a charge of approximately $1.7 million. We expect to incur
some additional expenses related to the restructuring of international operations in 2004 however, at
this time, we do not expect the amount to be significant. See Note 13 of Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements. Although we do not currently believe that we will need to further reduce staff,
the state of the economy and resulting technology spending by businesses, among other factors, could
result in further reductions.

24




Interest Income, Net

The majority of interest income, net is made up of interest earned from investments. Interest
expense, which is not material for any years reported, is also included in interest income, net. We have
experienced decreased interest earnings during the past three years as shown below.

Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001
($ in thousands)
Cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments (average) . $15,377 $18,664 $17,397
Interest income 179 422 1,193
1.2% 2.3% 6.9%

The decrease in interest income in 2002 from 2001 was related mainly to a decrease in interest
rates. The decrease in 2003 from 2002 was due partially to a decrease in interest rates and partially to
the mix of investments. In 2002, short-term investments were a greater proportion of the total, while in
2003, more cash was held in cash and cash equivalents accounts. Cash and cash equivalents earn a
lower rate of return than short-term investments. We opted to invest in this more liquid mix of
investments in 2003 in order to ensure the availability of our cash. We believe that interest income, net
will remain low in 2004 principally due to low interest rates.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

In 1999 we raised cash through an initial public offering that provided net proceeds of
$34.9 million. In 2001 we received an equity investment that yielded $15 million in cash. In addition, we
generate cash from the collections we receive related to licensing our application software and to
annual license renewals, maintenance and other services revenues. We also obtained a $3 million line of
credit, of which we had utilized $2.8 million as of December 31, 2003. We use cash primarily for paying
our employees (including salaries, commissions, benefits and severance), leasing office space,

reimbursing travel expenses, paying insurance premiums, remitting applicable taxes and paying vendors
for services rendered and supplies purchased. In addition, we purchase property and equipment,
including furnishing our new worldwide headquarters and in-house technology purchases.

We determine liquidity by combining cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments net of
our line of credit borrowings as shown in the table below. Although our total liquidity position
decreased in 2003, we believe that it, combined with our anticipated cash flows from operations in
2004, will be sufficient to satisty our cash needs over the next 12 months. If cash flows from operations
are less than anticipated or we have additional cash needs (such as an unfavorable outcome in legal
proceedings), our liquidity may not be sufficient to cover our needs. In this case, we may be forced to
raise additional capital, either through the capital markets or debt financings. We may not be able to
receive favorable terms in raising this capital.

December 31,
2003 2002
(in thousands)
Cash and cash equivalents $12,461 $ 5,913
Short-term investments 3,008 9,331
Line of credit (2,800) —

Total liquidity $12,669  $15,244

Our operating activities resulted in a net cash inflow of $75,000 in 2003 and net cash outflows of
$4.3 million and $2.1 million for 2002 and 2001, respectively. These outflows consisted mainly of net
losses offset by non-cash items such as depreciation and changes in deferred revenues. Depreciation




was $4.4 million, $5.2 million and $4.3 million in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Total deferred
revenue decreased by $1.2 million and $800,000 in 2003 and 2002, respectively, and increased

$4.0 million in 2001. In addition, restructuring expenses were accrued through accounts payable and
accrued liabilities, which resulted in fluctuations in cash flow as those expenses were paid (see Note 13
of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements).

The amount that we report as cash and cash equivalents or as temporary investments fluctuates
depending on investing practices in each period. Purchases of short-term investments are reported as a
use of cash and the related receipt of proceeds upon maturity of the investment is reported as a source
of cash.

We purchased property and equipment with a cost of $3.2 million, $3.2 million and $5.0 million in
2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

As shown in the following table, we have operating lease obligations and purchase obligations not
recorded in our financial statements. The operating lease obligations relate principally to the lease of
our corporate headquarters, as well as a few other building operating leases (see Note 7 of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements). In addition, we have several short-term rental obligations in the
U.S. and internationally, totaling $393,000, that are included in the table. Finally, we have signed
obligations to purchase some software for internal use that are included in the purchase obligations.
The amounts shown in the following table are as of December 31, 2003.

Payments Due by Period

Less than More than
Contractual Obligations Total 1 Year 1-3 Years 4 -5 Years 5 Years

(in thousands)
Line of credit $ 2800 $2,800 § — $ — 8 —
Operating lease obligations 34,823 3,047 4,236 4,239 23,301
Purchase obligations 194 194 — — —

$37,817  $6,041 $4,236 $4,239 $23,301

Except as set forth above in the Contractual Cbligations table, we have no material off-balance
sheet arrangements that have or are reasonably likely to have a current or future effect on our financial
condition, changes in financial condition, revenues or expenses, results of operations, liquidity, capital
expenditures or capital resources.

Factors that may affect our future operating results are set forth below:
THE OVERALL ECONCMIC CLIMATE MAY BE WEAK

Our products typically represent substantial capital commitments by customers and involve a
potentially long sales cycle. As a result, customer purchase decisions may be significantly affected by a
variety of factors, including general economic trends in the allocation of capital spending budgets to
communication software, services and systems, lengthened sales cycles, customer approval processes,
and market conditions, which have resulted in many of our customers delaying and/or reducing their
capital spending related to information systems. If the economy is weak, demand for our products
could decrease, resulting in lower revenues.

WE HAVE HISTORICALLY INCURRED LOSSES AND WE MAY NOT SUSTAIN PROFITABILITY

Since inception, the first quarter of 2003 was the only quarter we have been profitable. We
incurred net losses of $5.9 million, $7.7 million and $11.0 million in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.
At December 31, 2003, we had accumulated net losses since inception of $61.3 million. We intend to
continue to make significant investments in our research and development, marketing, services and
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sales operations. Certain of these expenses will precede generation of revenues. As a result, we may
continue to experience losses and/or negative cash flow from operations in future quarters.

OUR QUARTERLY OPERATING RESULTS HAVE VARIED SIGNIFICANTLY

Our operating results have varied significantly from quarter to quarter and may continue to do so
in the future depending on a number of factors affecting us or our industry, including many that are
beyond our control. As a result, we believe that period-to-period comparisons of our operating results
are not necessarily meaningful, and you should not rely on them as an indication of our future
performance. In addition, our operating results in a future quarter or quarters may fall below
expectations of securities analysts or investors and, as a result, the price of our common stock may
fluctuate.

Because we do not know if or when our potential customers will place orders and finalize licenses,
and because it is difficult to predict the mix of annually renewable licenses and perpetual licenses in a
quarter, we cannot accurately forecast our licensing activity, our revenues and our operating results for
future quarters. We recognize revenues from different licenses over different periods depending on the
satisfaction of the requirements of relevant accounting literature, including AICPA Statement of
Position 97-2, Statement of Position 98-9, SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin (SAB) 101, and all related
AICPA Technical Practice Aids (5100.38 - 5100.76). As a result, our quarterly revenues and operating
results depend on many factors, including the type of license, the size, quantity and timing of orders
received for our products during each quarter, the delivery of the related software and our expectations
regarding collection. If a large number of orders or several large orders do not occur or are deferred or
delayed, our revenues in a quarter could be substantially reduced. This risk is heightened by the
significant investment and executive level decision-making typically involved in our customers’ decisions
to license our products. Since a large portion of our operating expenses, including salaries and rent, is
fixed and difficult to reduce or modify in a short time period, our business, financial condition or
results of operations could be materially adversely affected if revenues do not meet our expectations,

Our limited number of products, changes in pricing policies, the timing of development
completion, and announcement and sale of new or upgraded versions of our products are some of the
additional factors that could cause our revenues and operating results to vary significantly from quarter
to quarter.

WE HAVE A LENGTHY PRODUCT SALES CYCLE WHICH HAS CONTRIBUTED AND MAY
CONTINUE TC CONTRIBUTE TO THE VARIABILITY OF QUARTERLY OPERATING RESULTS

We have generally experienced a lengthy product sales cycle, averaging approximately six to nine
months. The lengthy sales cycle is one of the factors that has caused, and may in the future continue to
cause, our software revenues and operating results to vary significantly from quarter to quarter, which
could affect the market price of our common stock. The lengthy sale cycle also makes it difficult for us
to forecast product license revenues. Because of the unique characteristics of our products, our
prospective customers’ decisions to license our products often require significant investment and
executive-level decision making. We believe that many companies currently are not aware of the
benefits of interaction management software of the type that we license or of our products and
capabilities. For this reason, we must provide a significant level of education to prospective customers
about the use and benefits of our products, which can cause potential customers to take many months
to make these decisions. As a result, sales cycles for customer orders vary substantially from customer
to customer. Excessive delay in product sales could materially adversely affect our business, financial
condition or results of operations.




The length of the sales cycle for customer orders depends on a number of other factors over which
we have little or no control, including:

° a customer’s budgetary constraints;
o the timing of a customer’s budget cycles;
e concerns by customers about the introduction of new products by us or our competitors; and

o downturns in general economic conditions, including reductions in demand for contact center
services.

The sales cycle for our products in international markets has been, and is expected to continue to
be, longer than the sales cycle in the United States. The average sales cycle for our products may
lengthen as we continue to expand internationally.

QUR INABILITY TO SUCCESSFULLY MANAGE OUR INCREASINGLY COMPLEX THIRD PARTY
RELATIONSHIPS COULD ADVERSELY AFFECT US

As the complexity of our product technology and our reseller and other third party relationships
have increased, the management of those relationships and the negotiation of contractual terms
sufficient to protect our rights and limit our potential liabilities have become more complicated, and we
expect this trend to continue in the future. As a result, our inability to successfully manage these
relationships or negotiate sufficient contractual terms could have a material adverse effect on us.

WE FACE COMPETITIVE PRESSURES, WHICH MAY HAVE A MATERIAL ADVERSE
EFFECT ON US

The market for our software applications is highly competitive and, because there are relatively low
barriers to entry in the software market, we expect competition to increase in the future. In addition,
because our industry is evolving and characterized by rapid technological change, it is difficult for us to
predict whether, when and by whom new competing technologies or new competitors may be
introduced into our markets. Currently, our competition comes from several different market segments,
including computer telephony platform developers, computer telephony applications software
developers and telecommunications equipment vendors. We cannot assure you that we will be able to
compete effectively against current and future competitors. In addition, increased competition or other
competitive pressures may result in price reductions, reduced margins or loss of market share, any of
which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results of operations.

Many of our current and potential competitors have longer operating histories, significantly greater
financial, technical, marketing, customer service and other resources, greater name recognition and a
larger installed base of customers than we do. As a result, these competitors may be able to respond to
new or emerging technologies and changes in customer requirements faster and more effectively than
we can, or to devote greater resources to the development, promotion and sale of products than we
can. Current and potential competitors have established, and may in the future establish, cooperative
relationships among themselves or with third parties, including mergers or acquisitions, to increase the
ability of their products to address the needs of our current or prospective customers. If these
competitors were to acquire significant market share, it could have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition or results of operations.




WE MAY NOT BE ABLE TO GROW OUR BUSINESS IF WE DO NOT MAINTAIN SUCCESSFUL
RELATIONSHIPS WITH OUR RESELLERS AND OEM PARTNERS AND CONTINUE TO RECRUIT
AND DEVELOP ADDITIONAL SUCCESSFUL RESELLERS AND OEM PARTNERS

Our ability to achieve revenue growth in the future will depend in part on our success in
maintaining successful relationships with our existing and future resellers and OEM partners and in
recruiting and training additional resellers and OEM partners. We rely primarily on resellers to market
and support our products and plan on continuing to rely heavily on such partners in the future. We are
still developing our reseller and OEM distribution networks and may be unable to attract additional
resellers with both voice and data expertise or appropriate OEM partners that will be able to market
our products effectively and that will be qualified to provide timely and cost-effective customer support
and service. We generally do not have long-term or exclusive agreements with our resellers or OEM
partners, and the loss of specific larger resellers or OEM partners or a significant number of resellers
or OEM partners could materially adversely affect our business, financial condition or results of
operations.

OUR MARKETS ARE CHARACTERIZED BY RAPID TECHNOLOGICAL CHANGE WHICH MAY
CAUSE US TO INCUR SIGNIFICANT DEVELOPMENT COSTS AND PREVENT US FROM
ATTRACTING NEW CUSTOMERS

The market for our products is characterized by rapid technological change, frequent new product
introductions and enhancements, uncertain product life cycles and changing customer demands. The
introduction of products embodying new technologies and the emergence of new industry standards
could render existing products obsolete or unmarketable and cause us to incur significant development
costs and prevent us from attracting new customers.

OUR BUSINESS WILL BE ADVERSELY AFFECTED IF WEB-BASED ELECTRONIC BUSINESS
SOLUTIONS ARE NOT WIDELY UTILIZED

Our products address a market for Web-based, interactive electronic business solutions. Therefore,
our future success depends on the widespread adoption of the Web as a primary medium for commerce
and business applications. The failure of this market to expand, or a delay in the development of this
market, could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results of
operations. The Web has experienced, and is expected to continue to experience, significant user and
traffic growth, which has, at times, caused user frustration with slow access and download times. The
Web infrastructure may not be able to support the demands placed on it by the continued growth on
which our success depends. Moreover, critical issues concerning the commercial use of the Web, such
as security, reliability, cost, accessibility and quality of service, remain unresolved and may negatively
affect the growth of Web use or the attractiveness of commerce and business communication over the
Web. In addition, the Web could lose its viability due to delays in the development or adoption of new
standards and protocols to handle increased activity or due to increased government regulation or
taxation of Internet commerce.

A DECLINE IN MARKET ACCEPTANCE FOR MICROSOFT TECHNQOLOGEES ON WHICH OUR
PRODUCTS RELY COULD HAVE A MATERIAL ADVERSE EFFECT ON US

Our products currently run only on Microsoft Windows operating systems. In addition, our
products use other Microsoft technologies, including Microsoft Exchange Server and Microsoft SQL
Server. A decline in market acceptance for Microsoft technologies or the increased acceptance of other
server technologies could cause us to incur significant development costs and could have a material
adverse effect on our ability to market our current products. Although we believe that Microsoft
technologies will continue to be widely used by businesses, we cannot assure you that businesses will
adopt these technologies as anticipated or will not in the future migrate to other computing
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technologies that we do not currently support. In addition, our products and technologies must
continue to be compatible with new developments in Microsoft technologies.

OUR FUTURE BUSINESS PROSPECTS DEPEND IN PART ON OUR ABILITY TO MAINTAIN AND
IMPROVE OUR CURRENT PRODUCTS AND DEVELOP NEW PRODUCTS

We believe that our future business prospects depend in large part on our ability to maintain and
improve our current software applications and to develop new software applications on a timely basis.
Our software applications will have to continue to achieve market acceptance, maintain technological
competitiveness and meet an expanding range of customer requirements. As a result of the
complexities inherent in our applications, major new applications and application enhancements require
long development and testing periods. We may not be successful in developing and marketing, on a
timely and cost effective basis, application enhancements or new software applications that respond to
technological change, evolving industry standards or customer requirements. We may also experience
difficulties that could delay or prevent the successful development, introduction or marketing of
application enhancements, and our new applications and application enhancements may not achieve
market acceptance. Significant delays in the general availability of new releases of our software
applications or significant problems in the installation or implementation of new releases of our
applications could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results of
operations.

SLOW GROWTH, OR A DECLINE IN DEMAND FOR INTERACTION MANAGEMENT SOFTWARE
OF THE TYPE WE LICENSE, COULD MATERIALLY ADVERSELY AFFECT OUR FINANCIAL
RESULTS AND GROWTH PROSPECTS

If the demand for interaction management software of the type we license does not grow within
each of our four targeted markets, our financial results and ability to grow our business could be
materially adversely affected. All of our revenues have been generated from licenses of our Interaction
Center Platform software or complementary products, and related support, educational and
professional services. We expect these products and services to account for the majority of our revenues
for the foreseeable future. Although we believe demand for the functions performed by our products is
high, the market for our products and services is still emerging. Further, our growth plans require us to
successfully attract enterprise and service provider customers in significantly larger numbers than we
have historically achieved.

IF OQUR CUSTOMERS DO NOT PERCEIVE OQUR PRODUCTS OR THE RELATED SERVICES
PROVIDED BY US OR OUR RESELLERS OR OEM PARTNERS TO BE EFFECTIVE OR OF HIGH
QUALITY, OUR BRAND AND NAME RECOGNITION WILL SUFFER

We believe that establishing and maintaining brand and name recognition is critical for attracting,
retaining and expanding customers in our target markets. We also believe that the importance of
reputation and name recognition will increase as competition in our market increases. Promotion and
enhancement of our name will depend on the effectiveness of our marketing and advertising efforts and
on our success in providing high-quality products and related services, neither of which can be assured.
If our customers do not perceive our products or related services to be effective or of high quality, our
brand and name recognition would suffer which could have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition or results of operations.
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WE MAY NOT BE ABLE TO PROTECT OUR PROPRIETARY RIGHTS ADEQUATELY, WHICH
COULD ALLOW THIRD PARTIES TO COPY OR OTHERWISE OBTAIN AND USE QUR
TECHNOLOGY WITHOUT AUTHORIZATION

We regard our software products as proprietary. In an effort to protect our proprietary rights, we
rely primarily on a combination of copyright, trademark and trade secret laws, as well as patents,
licensing and other agreements with consultants, suppliers, strategic and OEM partners, resellers and
customers, and employee and third-party non-disclosure agreements. These laws and agreements
provide only limited protection of our proprietary rights. We currently hold three patents and have filed
numerous other patent applications relating to technology embodied in our software products. We hold
17 U.S. trademark registrations and 30 foreign trademark registrations and have numerous other
trademark applications pending worldwide, as well as having common law rights in other trademarks
and service marks. We hold one registered copyright. It may be possible for a third party to copy or
otherwise obtain and use our technology without authorization. A third party could also develop similar
technology independently. In addition, the laws of some countries in which we sell our products do not
protect our software and intellectual property rights to the same extent as the laws of the United
States. Unauthorized copying, use or reverse engineering of our products could materially adversely
affect our business, results of operations or financial condition.

We license technology that is embedded in our products. If one or more of these licenses
terminates or cannot be renewed on satisfactory terms, we would have to modify the affected products
to use alternative technology or eliminate the affected product function, either of which could have a
material adverse effect on us.

INFRINGEMENT CLAIMS COULD ADVERSELY AFFECT US

Third parties have claimed or may in the future claim that our technology infringes their
proprietary rights. As the number of software products in our target markets increases and the
functionality of these products overlap, we believe that software developers may face additional
infringement claims. See Note 12 of Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for a description
of contingencies.

Infringement claims, even if without merit, can be time consuming and expensive to defend. A
third party asserting infringement claims against us or our customers with respect to our current or
future products may require us to enter into costly royalty arrangements or litigation, or otherwise
materially adversely affect us.

WE DEPEND ON KEY PERSONNEL AND WILL NEED TO RETAIN AND RECRUIT SKILLED
PERSONNEL, FOR WHICH COMPETITION IS INTENSE, TO CONDUCT AND GROW OUR
BUSINESS EFFECTIVELY

Our success depends in large part on the continued service of our key personnel, particularly
Dr. Donald E. Brown, our Chief Executive Officer and principal stockholder. The loss of the services
of Dr. Donald E. Brown or other key personnel could have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition or results of operations. Our future success also depends on our ability to attract,
train, assimilate and retain additional qualified personnel. Competition for persons with skills in the
software industry is intense, particularly for those with relevant technical and/or sales experience. We
cannot assure you that we will be able to retain our key employees or that we can attract, train,
assimilate or retain other highly qualified personnel in the future.

Also, in connection with our effort to streamline operations, reduce costs and rationalize our
staffing and structure, we initiated headcount reductions in both 2001 and 2002 of approximately 10%
to12% each year. There were substantial costs associated with the workforce reductions related to
severance and other employee-related costs, and our restructuring plans may still yield unanticipated




consequences, such as attrition beyond our implemented headcount reductions. As a result, our ability
to respond to unexpected challenges may be impaired and we may be unable to take advantage of new
opportunities. These reductions in workforce may reduce employee morale and may create concern
among existing employees about job security, which may lead to increased turnover. These reductions
in headcount may still subject us to the risk of litigation. In addition, recent trading levels of our
common stock have decreased the value of the stock options granted to employees pursuant to our
stock option plans. As a result of these factors, our remaining personnel may seek employment with
larger, more established companies or companies they perceive as having a greater potential for stock
price appreciation.

WE MAY PURSUE ACQUISITIONS THAT BY THEIR NATURE PRESENT RISKS AND THAT MAY
NOT BE SUCCESSFUL

In the future we may pursue acquisitions to diversify our product offerings and customer base or
for other strategic purposes. We have no prior history of making material acquisitions and we cannot
assure you that any future acquisitions will be successful. The following are some of the risks associated
with acquisitions that could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or
results of operations:

° We cannot assure that any acquired businesses will achieve anticipated revenues, earnings or
cash flow.

We may be unable to integrate acquired businesses successfully and realize anticipated economic,
operational and other benefits in a timely manner, particularly if we acquire a business in a
market in which we have limited or no current expertise, or with a corporate culture different
from our own. If we are unable to integrate acquired businesses successfully, we could incur
substantial costs and delays or other operational, technical or financial problems.

Acquisitions could disrupt our ongoing business, distract management, divert resources and make
it difficult to maintain our current business standards, controls and procedures.

We may finance future acquisitions by issuing common stock for some or all of the purchase
price. This could dilute the ownership interests of our stockholders. We may also incur
additional debt or be required to recognize expense related to intangible assets recorded in
future acquisitions.

We may be competing with other firms, many of which have greater financial and other
resources, to acquire attractive companies, making it more difficult to acquire suitable companies
on acceptable terms.

OUR INTERNATIONAL OPERATIONS INVOLVE FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL RISKS

Cur international operations require significant management attention and financial resources to
establish and operate, including hiring appropriate personnel and recruiting effective international
resellers. Non-North American revenues accounted for 13%, 19% and 22% of our total revenues for
the years ended 2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively. To date, our products have been licensed outside
North America primarily in Western Europe, South Africa, and Australia. We also have marketing
efforts in Japan, Korea, China and Central and South America. We intend to continue to emphasize
our international operations and we may enter additional international markets. Revenues from
international operations may be inadequate to cover the expenses of those operations. In addition to
foreign currency fluctuation risks, other risks inherent in our international business activities may
include the following:

° economic and political instability;




o unexpected changes in foreign regulatory requirements and laws;
o tariffs and other trade barriers;

° timing, cost and potential difficulty of adapting our software products to the local language in
those foreign countries that do not use the alphabet that English uses, such as Japan, Korea and
China;

e lack of acceptance of our products in foreign countries;

° longer sales cycles and accounts receivable payment cycles;
° potentially adverse tax consequences;

e restrictions on the repatriation of funds;

e acts of terrorism; and

° increased government regulations related to increasing or reducing business activity in various
countries.

FLUCTUATIONS IN THE VALUE OF FOREIGN CURRENCIES COULD RESULT IN LOSSES

Cur international revenues are generally denominated in U.S. dollars with the exception of some
European resellers and customers located in countries who have adopted the Euro as their official
currency. Our international expenses are generally denominated in local foreign currencies. Although
foreign currency translation gains and losses have been immaterial to date, fluctuations in exchange
rates between the U.S. dollar and other currencies could have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition or results of operations, and particularly on our operating margins. To
date, we have minimally sought to hedge the risks associated with fluctuations in exchange rates, but we
may more actively undertake to do so in the future. Any hedging techniques we implement in the
future may not be successful. Exchange rate fluctuations could also make our products more expensive
than competitive products not subject to these fluctuations, which could adversely affect our revenues
and profitability in international markets.

OUR PRODUCTS COULD HAVE DEFECTS FOR WHICH WE ARE POTENTIALLY LIABLE AND
WHICH COULD RESULT IN LOSS OF REVENUE, INCREASED COSTS OR LOSS OF OUR
CREDIBILITY OR DELAY IN ACCEPTANCE OF OUR PRODUCTS IN THE MARKET

Our products, including components supplied by others, may contain errors or defects, especially
when first introduced or when new versions are released. Despite internal product testing, we have in
the past discovered software errors in some of our products after their introduction. Errors in new
products or releases could be found after commencement of commercial shipments, and this could
result in additional development costs, diversion of technical and other resources from our other
development efforts, or the loss of credibility with current or future customers. This could result in a
loss of revenue or delay in market acceptance of our products, which could have a material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition or results of operations.

Our license agreements with our customers typically contain provisions designed to limit our
exposure to potential product liability and some contract claims. However, not all of these agreements
contain these types of provisions and, where present, these provisions vary as to their terms and may
not be effective under the laws of some jurisdictions. A product liability, warranty, or other claim
brought against us could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results
of operations.

Because our solution currently consists of our software running on a Windows 2000 server and
voice processing boards operating in a complex network environment with database servers, email
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servers and other third party systems, it may be more prone to performance interruptions for our
customers than traditional hardware-based products. Performance interruptions at our customer sites,
most of which currently do not have back-up systems, could affect demand for our products or give rise
to claims against us.

WE MAY NOT BE ABLE TO OBTAIN ADEQUATE FINANCING TO IMPLEMENT QUR STRATEGY

Successful implementation of our strategy may require continued access to capital. If we do not
generate sufficient cash from operations, our growth could be limited unless we are able to obtain
capital through additional debt or equity financings. We cannot assure you that debt or equity
financings will be available as required for acquisitions or other needs. Even if financing is available, it
may not be on terms that are favorable to us or sufficient for our needs. If we are unable to obtain
sufficient financing, we may be unable to fully implement our growth strategy.

OUR STOCK PRICE HAS BEEN AND COULD CONTINUE TO BE HIGHLY VOLATILE

Our stock price has been and could continue to be highly volatile due to a number of factors,
including:

o actual or anticipated fluctuations in our operating results;
° announcements by us, our competitors or our customers;

° changes in financial estimates of securities analysts or investors regarding us, our industry or cur
competitors;

o technological innovations by others;

e the operating and stock price performance of other comparable companies or of our
competitors;

° the low number of our shares typically traded in any trading session;

o the availability for future sale, or sales, of a substantial number of shares of our common stock
in the public market; and

e general market or economic conditions.

This risk may be heightened because our industry is new and evolving, characterized by rapid
technological change and susceptible to the introduction of new competing technologies or competitors.

In addition, the stock market has experienced significant price and volume fluctuations that have
particularly affected the trading prices of equity securities of many technology companies, including us.
These price and volume fluctuations often have been unrelated to the operating performance of the
affected companies. [n the past, following periods of volatility in the market price of a company’s
securities, securities class action litigation has often been instituted against that company. This type of
litigation, regardless of the outcome, could result in substantial costs and a diversion of management’s
attention and resources, which could materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition or
results of operations.

QOUR COMMON STCCK IS SUBJECT TO VARIOUS LISTING REQUIREMENTS

The various markets operated by The NASDAQ Stock Market have quantitative maintenance
criteria for continued listing of common stock. We may be delisted from one or more NASDAQ
markets if we fail to comply with the criteria. While we believe that we currently meet criteria for
listing on a market operated by The NASDAQ Stock Market, we can offer no assurance that our
common stock will continue to meet the various criteria for continued listing on any market operated
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by The NASDAQ Stock Market. Any delisting may result in a reduction in the liquidity of our common
stock, which may have a material adverse effect on the price of our common stock.

REGULATORY CHANGES MADE TO GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES OR
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE MATTERS MAY IMPACT OUR BUSINESS

Revisions to generally accepted accounting principles will require us to review our accounting and
financial reporting procedures in order to ensure continued compliance with required policies. From
time to time, such changes may have a short-term impact on our reporting, and these changes may
impact market perception of our financial condition. In addition, legislative changes, and the perception
these changes create, can have a material, adverse effect on our business. For example:

° pending or new legislation may lead to an increase in our costs related to audits in particular
and regulatory compliance generally; and

* changes in the legal climate may lead to additional liability concerns which may result in
increased insurance costs.

OUR EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS CONTROL US AND MAY MAKE DECISIONS
THAT SHAREHOLDERS DO NOT CONSIDER TO BE IN TEEIR BEST INTERESTS

Cur current directors and executive officers together beneficially own more than 50% of our
outstanding commeon stock. Accordingly, these shareholders are able to control us through their ability
to determine the outcome of the election of our directors, amend our Restated Articles of
Incorporation and By-Laws and take other actions requiring the vote or consent of shareholders,
including mergers, going private transactions and other extraordinary transactions, and the terms of any
of these transactions. The ownership position of these shareholders may have the effect of delaying,
deterring or preventing a change in control or a change in the composition of our board of directors.

ANTI-TAKEQVER PROVISIONS IN OUR ORGANIZATIONAL DOCUMENTS AND INDIANA LAW
MAKE ANY CHANGE IN CONTROL OF US MORE DIFFICULT, MAY DISCOURAGE BIDS AT A
PREMIUM OVER THE MARKET PRICE AND MAY ADVERSELY AFFECT THE MARKET PRICE
OF CUR STOCK

Our Restated Articles of Incorporation and By-Laws contain provisions that may have the effect of
delaying, deferring or preventing a change in control of us, may discourage bids at a premium over the
market price of our common stock and may adversely affect the market price of our common stock,
and the voting and other rights of the holders of our common stock. These provisions include:

¢ the division of our board of directors into three classes serving staggered three-year terms;
 removal of directors only for cause and only upon a 66 2/3% shareholder vote;
e prohibiting shareholders from calling a special meeting of shareholders;

° the ability to issue additional shares of our common stock or preferred stock without
shareholders’ approval; and

= advance notice requirements for raising business or making nominations at shareholders’
meetings.

The Indiana corporation law contains business combination provisions that, in general, prohibit for
five years any business combination with a beneficial owner of 10% or more of our common stock
unless the holder’s acquisition of the stock was approved in advance by our board of directors. The
Indiana corporation law also contains control share acquisition provisions that limit the ability of
certain shareholders to vote their shares unless their control share acquisition was approved in advance.




WE CANNQOT PREDICT EVERY EVENT AND CIRCUMSTANCE THAT MAY IMPACT OUR
BUSINESS AND, THEREFORE, THE RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES DISCUSSED ABOVE MAY
NOT BE THE ONLY ONES YOU SHOULD CONSIDER

The risks and uncertainties discussed above are in addition to those that apply to most businesses
generally. In addition, as we continue to grow our business, we may encounter other risks of which we
are not aware at this time. These additional risks may cause serious damage to our business in the
future, the impact of which we cannot estimate at this time.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk.

We develop products in the United States and license our products in North America, Europe, the
Asia/Pacific region, South Africa, and Central and South America. As a result, our financial results
could be affected by various factors, including changes in foreign currency exchange rates or weak
economic conditions in foreign markets. As most sales are currently made in U.S. dollars, a
strengthening of the dollar could make our products less competitive in foreign markets. Additionally,
as our business matures in foreign markets, we may offer our products and services in certain other
local currencies. As a result, we will be subject to foreign currency fluctuations, which may have an
adverse affect on our company.

We manage our interest rate risk by maintaining an investment portfolio with debt instruments of
high credit quality and relatively short average maturities. We also manage interest rate risk by
maintaining sufficient cash and cash equivalent balances such that we are typically able to hold our
investments to maturity. We have a line of credit with a variable interest rate based upon the bank’s
prime rate on which we will incur interest expense if the line is utilized.




Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.

Report of KPMG LLP, Independent Auditors

The Board of Directors
Interactive Intelligence, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Interactive Intelligence, Inc. and
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2003 and the related consolidated statements of operations,
shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the year then ended. In connection with our audit of the
consolidated financial statements, we also have audited the 2003 consolidated financial statement
schedule listed in the Index at Item 15. These consolidated financial statements and schedule are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements and schedule based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the consolidated financial position of Interactive Intelligence, Inc. and subsidiaries at
December 31, 2003 and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for the year
then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. Also, in our opinion, the related consolidated financial statement schedule, when considered
in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all
material respects, the information set forth therein.

/s/ KPMG LLP

Indianapolis, Indiana
January 23, 2004




Report of Ernst & Young LLE, Independent Auditors

The Board of Directors
Interactive Intelligence, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Interactive Intelligence, Inc. as
of December 31, 2002 and the related consolidated statements of operations, shareholders’ equity and
cash flows for each of the two years in the period ended December 31, 2002. Our audits also included
the financial statement schedule listed in the Index at Item 15 for the years ended December 31, 2002
and 2001. These financial statements and schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and schedule
based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the consolidated financial position of Interactive Intelligence, Inc. at December 31, 2002 and the
consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the two years in the period ended
December 31, 2002, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.
Also, in our opinion, the related financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic
financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly in all material respects the information set forth
therein.

/s ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Indianapolis, Indiana
February 7, 2003
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Imteractive Intelligence, Inc.
Comnsolidated Balance Sheets
As of December 31, 2003 and 2002

(in thousands, except share amoumnts)

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents . . ... ... ... . . . . . . i,
Short-term iNVeStMEntS . . .. oo v it et e e
Account receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $354 in 2003 and
$671 0N 2002 . . .. e
Prepaid exXpenses. . . .. o
Other CUITENT @SSEES . . . o vttt it it et e et et e e et e e e

Total CUITENt ASSETS . . v o ottt e e e e

Property and equipment, €t . . ... ... . .
Other assets, MEt . .. vttt e e e

T0tal ASSEtS . .. e e e

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity

Current liabilities:
Lineofcredit . ...... . .
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Accrued compensation and related expenses . . ... ..... ... o oL
Deferred software revenues . ... ... ...
Deferred Services reVENUES . .. ..ottt e e

Total current liabilities . . .. . .. . .

Shareholders’ equity:

Preferred stock, no par value: 10,000,000 authorized; no shares issued and
QUESEANAING . . . oot e e

Common stock, $0.01 par value; 100,000,000 authorized; 15,755,477 issued and
outstanding at December 31, 2003, 15,524,369 issued and outstanding at
December 31, 2002 . . ...

Additional paid-in capital ......... .. ...

Accumulated other comprehensive income . ......... ... ... ... . ...

Accumulated deficit. . . ... .. . e

Total shareholders’ equity . . . ... ... i e
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity . . . ... ... ... . ... ... . ... ....

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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December 31,
2003 2002

$ 12,461 § 5,913
3,008 9,331

8,956 9,047
1,958 2,170
418 73

26,801 26,534

5,857 7,586
601 1,046

$ 33,259 § 35,166

$ 280 § —
4,544 3,203
1,349 995

8,745 12,102
12,030 9,882

29,468 26,182

157 155
64,696 64,140
280 162

(61,342)  (55,473)
3,791 8984

$ 33,259 § 35,166




Interactive Intelligence, Imc.
Consolidated Statements of Operations
For the Years Ended December 31, 2003, 2602, and 2001

(in thousands, except per share amoumn(s)

Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001

Revenues:

Software
Services

Total revenues

Cost of revenues:
Software
Services

Total cost of revenues

Gross profit

Operating expenses:
Sales and marketing

$26,323
25,189

51,512

$28,323
19,483

47,806

$ 31,321
16,625

47,946

986
12,123

13,109
34,697

959
13,430

14,389
33,557

12,451
13,641

21,022 21,987

Research and development
General and administrative
Restructuring and other charges

Total operating expenses

15,142
5,606
774

42,544

15,616
6,786
1,056

45,445

Operating loss
Interest income, net

Loss before income taxes
Income taxes

Net loss

Basic and diluted:
Net loss per share

Shares used to compute net loss per share

(7,847)
412

(7,435)
230

$(7,665)

(11,888)
1,169

(10,719)
271

$(10,990)

(5,658)
211

$(5,869)

$ (0.38)
15,627

$ (050) $

15,423

(0.73)
15,058

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements




Interactive Intelligence, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity
For the Years Ended December 31, 2003, 20062 and 2001
(in thousands)

Additional Accum. Other

Common Stock Paid-in Comprehensive  Accumulated

Shares Amount Capital Income (loss) Deficit Total

Balances, January 1,2001 ........... 14,344 $143  $46,995 $ 38 $(36,818) $ 10,358
Issuances of common stock .......... 691 7 15,965 — — 15,972
Exercise of stock options . ........... 248 3 328 — — 331
Amortization of deferred stock-based

compensation. . ................. — — 197 — — 197
Comprehensive loss:

Unrealized loss on investments . . . . .. — — — D — (51

NetlosS. v vv it — — — — (10,990)  (10,990)
Total comprehensive loss ... ......... — — — (51 {10,990y  (11,041)
Balances, December 31, 2001 .. ..... .. 15,283 153 63,485 (13) (47,808) 15,817
Issuances of common stock . ......... 131 1 432 — — 433
Exercise of stock options .. .......... 110 1 114 — — 115
Amortization of deferred stock-based

compensation. . . ................ — — 109 — — 109
Comprehensive income (loss):

Unrealized gain on investments. . .. .. — — — 22 — 22

Unrealized gain on foreign currency

translation ................... — — — 153 — 153

Netloss. .. oovviiiiiein ... — — — — (7,665) (7,665)
Total comprehensive income (loss) . . . .. — — — 175 (7,665) (7,490)
Balances, December 31,2002 . ........ 15,524 155 64,140 162 (55,473) 8,984
Issuances of common stock .......... 136 1 322 — — 323
Exercise of stock options . . .......... 95 1 134 — — 135
Amortization of deferred stock-based

compensation. . ................. — — 100 — — 100
Comprehensive income (loss):

Unrealized loss on investments . . .. .. — — — €))] — 9)

Unrealized gain on foreign currency

translation . .................. — — — 127 — 127

Netloss. ..o — — — — (5,869) (5,869)
Total comprehensive income (loss) . . . .. — — — 118 (5,869) (5,751)
Balances, December 31,2003 . . ....... 15,755  $157  $64,696 $280 $(61,342) § 3,791

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Interactive Intelligence, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
For the Years Ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001

(in thousands)

Year Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
Operating activities:
Net 0SS ..o e $(5,869) $ (7,665) $(10,990)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used by operating
activities:
Depreciation . ... ... ...ttt 4,396 5,236 4,308
Amortization of deferred stock-based compensation . ... ......... 160 109 197
Loss on disposal of property and equipment .................. 559 — —
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accountsreceivable. .. ... .. L 9 (623) 1,054
Prepaid eXpenses. . . . .o e 212 (55) 327}
Other current assets . . ... vttt it (345) 150 (33)
Other @SSELS « o o o v v e e e e e e e 445 18 (264)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities . . .................. 1,341 (658) (49)
Accrued compensation and related expenses . . . ... ........ .. 354 (58) (32)
Deferred software revenues . . ... ... ... 3,357y (1,461 1,956
Deferred SeIviCes TEVEMUES . . v v v v v ittt et e e et et et 2,148 668 2,063
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities ................. 75 (4,339) (2,117
Investing activities:
Purchases of property and equipment . ...................... (3,226)  (3,224)  (5,030)
Purchases of available-for-sale investments. ... ................ —  (14,848) (10,196)
Sales of available-for-sale investments .. ..................... 6,441 13,273 14,286
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities ... ............... 3,215 (4,799) (940)
Financing activities:
Proceeds from line of credit . ........... ... ... ... ... .. ... 2,800 — —
Principal payment on capital lease obligations ................. — — 37N
Proceeds from issuance of common stock. .. .................. 323 433 15,607
Proceeds from stock options exercised . .. ........ ... ... .. ... 135 115 331
Net cash provided by financing activities . . . .................... 3,258 548 15,561
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents .. ............ 6,548 (8,590) 12,504
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period . . ................ 5913 14,503 1,999
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period . ..................... $12,461 $ 5913 §$ 14,503
Cash paid for taxes . .. ...ttt $ 6 $§ 189 §$ 129

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Interactive Intefligence, Inc.
Notes to Consclidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001

i. THE COMPANY AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The Company

Interactive Intelligence, Inc. (the “Company”) is a leading provider of software applications for
contact centers and is leveraging that leadership position to provide mission critical voice over Internet
protocol (VoIP) applications to enterprises. The Company sells into four distinct markets, all of whose
needs are increasing for VolP-based systems:

o Contact Centers

o Enterprise [P Telephony

o Unified Communications, and
= Self-service Automation.

The Company’s principal competitors are hardware vendors who offer proprietary approaches
using a combination of phone systems, call distributors, voicemail systems, and interactive voice
response (IVR) systems equipment. The Company offers a software solution based on Microsoft
Windows that resides on a customer’s network and uses an open Session Initiation Protocol (SIP) for
VoIP networking. This open approach typically results in lower overall costs for phone devices, system
maintenance, and customer networking. The Company’s software applications are also pre-integrated to
many popular business applications such as financial, customer relationship management (CRM) and
enterprise resource planning (ERP) software, thereby automating and tracking business transactions to
customer interactions. The Company is best known for its bundled suite of contact center applications
that includes multi-media customer contact for phone calls, Web chat, Web callback, e-mail queuing,
customer defined queues, and integrated speech recognition applications.

Principal operations of the Company commenced during 1997. Since then, the Company has
established wholly-owned subsidiaries in Australia, France, the Netherlands and the United Kingdom.
The Company also currently has branch offices in Canada, Germany, Hong Kong, Japan, Korea,
Malaysia, Singapore, Spain and Sweden. The Company markets its software applications in North
America, Central America, South America, Europe, Asia/Pacific, Australia and South Africa.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements inctude the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned
subsidiaries after elimination of all significant intercompany accounts and transactions.
Revenue Recognition

The Company generates software revenues from licensing the right to use its software applications
and generates services revenues primarily from annual software license renewal fees, annual
maintenance fees, educational services and professional services. The Company’s software license
agreements are either annually renewable or perpetual.

The Company’s software license fees primarily originate from its marketing programs and the
efforts of its direct sales group and resellers. These resellers are authorized to place orders for software
licenses with the Company on behalf of its customers and the Company receives a portion of the




Interactive Intelligence, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001

customer’s software license fees according to the terms of their reseller agreements. The Company
recognizes as revenue only that portion of the software license fee paid to it by the reseller.

For any revenues to be recognized from a software license agreement, the following criteria must
be met:

o persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists;

o the fee is fixed or determinable;
= collection is probable; and
e delivery has occurred.

Delivery is further defined in certain software license agreements as delivery of the product master
or first copy for non-cancelable product licensing arrangements under which the recipient, typically a
reseller, has certain software distribution rights. For these licensing arrangements, the delivery criteria
have been met when a binding order for a specified customer is placed, as the reseller already
possesses a product master copy and the Company has no further delivery obligations.

For an annually renewable software license agreement, upon meeting the revenue recognition
criteria the Company recognizes a portion of the initial license fees under these agreements as software
revenues ratably over the initial license period, which is generally 12 months. The allocation of the
initial order between software revenues (initial license fees) and services revenues {annual renewal fees)
is based on actual license renewal fee rates. After the initial license period, the Company’s customers
may renew their license agreement for an additional annual period by paying an additional annual
license renewal fee. If the annual renewal fee is not paid, the customer is no longer entitled to use the
software and the Company terminates the license agreement. Payment of the annual renewal fee also
entitles the customer to post-contract technical support and unspecified product upgrades for the initial
license term or renewal period. The Company recognizes these additional annual renewal fees as
services revenues ratably over the term of the renewal period, which is also generally 12 months.

For a perpetual software license agreement, upon meeting the revenue recognition criteria, the
Company immediately recognizes as software revenues the amount of initial license fees if sufficient
vendor specific objective evidence exists to support allocating a portion of the total fee to the
undelivered elements of the arrangement. If sufficient vendor specific objective evidence of the
undelivered elements does not exist, the Company typically recognizes the initial license fee ratably
over the initial post contract maintenance term, which is generally 12 months. Under these perpetual
license agreements, the Company recognizes annual maintenance fees as services revenues ratably over
the post-contract maintenance period, which is typically 12 months. The Company’s customers may
renew their maintenance term by paying an additional maintenance fee. Payment of this fee entitles the
customer to post-contract technical support and unspecified product upgrades. The Company
recognizes these additional maintenance fees as services revenues ratably over the term of the renewal
period, which is also generally 12 months.

The Company shares annual renewal fees and annual maintenance fees with those resellers who
provide level one technical support to customers. When these revenues are shared with resellers, the
Company typically receives between 50% and 70% of the amount charged by the reseller to the
customer. The Company recognizes these annual renewal fees and annual maintenance fees as services
revenues ratably over the term of the renewal period.




Interactive Intelligence, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001

The Company also generates revenues from other services that it provides to its resellers and
customers. These additional services revenues include fees for educational services and professional
services. Revenues from educational services, which consist of training courses for resellers and
customers, and professional services, which include implementing and customizing our products for a
customer, are typically recognized as the related services are performed.

Allowance for Doubiful Accounts Receivable

The Company adjusts the allowance for doubtful accounts for each reporting period based on a
detailed analysis of its accounts receivable at the end of that period. In estimating the allowance for
doubtful accounts, the Company primarily considers the age of the reseller’s or customer’s receivable
and also considers the creditworthiness of the reseller or customer, the economic conditions of the
customer’s industry, and general economic conditions, among other factors. If any of these factors
change, the Company may also change its original estimates, which could impact the level of its future
allowance for doubtful accounts.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts
reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Despite management’s best effort to
establish good faith estimates and assumptions, actual results could differ from these estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less from
date of purchase to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents consist primarily of cash on deposit
with banks and high quality money market instruments.

Investments

The Company’s investments, which consist primarily of taxable corporate and government debt
securities, are classified as available-for-sale. Such investments are recorded at fair value and unrealized
gains and losses are excluded from earnings and recorded as a separate component of equity until
realized. Premiums or discounts are amortized or accreted over the life of the related security as an
adjustment to yield using the effective interest method. Realized gains and losses from the sale of
available-for-sale securities are determined on a specific identification basis. A decline in the market
value of securities below cost judged to be other than temporary results in a reduction in the carrying
amount to fair value. The impairment is charged to earnings and a new cost basis for the security is
established. Interest and dividends on all securities are included in interest income when earned.

Financial Instruments

The fair value of financial instruments, including cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable
and the line of credit approximate the carrying values.




Interactive Imtelligence, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Comntinued)
December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line
method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. Leasehold improvements are amortized using the
straight-line method over the lesser of the term of the related lease or the estimated useful life.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The Company adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statement No. 144,
Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets, on January 1, 2002. The adoption of
FASB Statement No. 144 did not affect the Company’s financial statements.

In accordance with FASB Statement No. 144, long-lived assets, such as property, plant and
equipment, and intangibles subject to amortization, are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable.
Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an
asset to estimated undiscounted future cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. If the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its estimated future cash flows, an impairment charge is recognized for the
amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the fair value of the asset. Assets to be
disposed of would be separately presented in the balance sheet and reported at the lower of the
carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell, and are no longer depreciated. The assets and liabilities
of a disposal group classified as held for sale would be presented separately in the appropriate asset
and liability sections of the balance sheet. The Company does not have any long lived assets it
considers to be impaired.

Advertising

The Company expenses all advertising costs as incurred. Advertising expense for 2003, 2002 and
2001 was $66,000, $121,000 and $4G0,000, respectively.

Research and Development

Research and development expenditures are generally expensed as incurred. FASB Statement
No. 86, Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software to be Sold, Leased or Otherwise Marketed,
requires capitalization of certain software development costs subsequent to the establishment of
technological feasibility. Based on the Company’s product development process, technological feasibility
is established upon completion of a working model. Costs incurred by the Company between
completion of the working model and the point at which the product is ready for general release have
been insignificant. Through December 31, 2003, all research and development costs have been
expensed.

Stock Options

The Company applies the intrinsic-value based method of accounting prescribed by Accounting
Principles Board (APB) Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued fto Employees, and related
interpretations including FASB Interpretation No. 44, Accounting for Certain Transactions involving
Stock Compensation, an interpretation of APB Opinion No. 25, to account for its fixed-plan stock
options. Under this method, compensation expense is recorded on the date of grant only if the current
market price of the underlying stock exceeded the exercise price. FASB Statement No. 123, Accounting




Imteractive Intelligence, Inc.
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December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001

for Stock-Based Compensation and FASB Statement No. 148, Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation— Transition and Disclosure, and amendment of FASB Statement No. 123, established
accounting and disclosure requirements using a fair-value-based method of accounting for stock-based
employee compensation plans. As permitted by existing accounting standards, the Company has elected
to continue to apply the intrinsic-value-based method of accounting described above, and has adopted
only the disclosure requirements of FASB Statement No. 123, as amended.

For purposes of pro forma disclosures, the estimated fair value of the options is amortized to
expense on a straight-line basis over the options’ vesting period. The table included below illustrates
the effect on the net income and earnings per share if the Company had applied the fair value
recognition provisions of FASB Statement 123 to stock-based employee compensation (in thousands
except per share amounts).

Years Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001

Net loss, as reported . ... .................... $(5,869) $ (7,665) $(10,990)
Add: Stock-based employee compensation expense

and stock-based non-employee expense included in

reported net income, net of related tax effects . . . . 100 109 197
Deduct: Total stock-based compensation expense

determined under fair value based method for all

awards, net of related tax effects . . . ........... (3,784)  (5,592)  (4,969)
Proformanetloss............ ... .. ........ $(9,553) $(13,148) $(15,762)
Loss per share:
Basic and diluted—as reported . . .. ............. $ (0.38) $ (0.50) $ (0.73)
Basic and diluted—pro forma.................. (0.61) (0.85) (1.05)

Pro forma information regarding net income is required by FASB Statement No. 148, which also
requires that the information be determined as if the Company had accounted for its employee stock
options granted subsequent to December 31, 1994 under the fair value method of that Statement. The
fair value of these options was estimated at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes pricing model
with the following weighted-average assumptions for 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively:

e a risk-free interest rate of 4.26%, 3.82% and 5.03%,
¢ a volatility factor of 91.8%, 98.1% and 96.8%,
¢ a dividend yield of 0% for all years, and

¢ a weighted-average expected life of the option of 7.5 years for all years.

Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the
financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and
operating loss and tax credit carryforwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using
enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences
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are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in
tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date.

Loss Per Share

Basic loss per share is calculated based on the weighted-average number of outstanding common
shares in accordance with FASB Statement No. 128, Earnings per Share. Diluted loss per share is
calculated based on the weighted-average number of outstanding common shares plus the effect of
dilutive potential common shares. When the Company reports a net loss, the calculation of diluted net
loss per share excludes potential common shares as the effect would be antidilutive. Potential common
shares are composed of shares of common stock issuable upon the exercise of stock options. In 2003,
2002 and 2001, 472,000, 515,000 and 1.0 million shares of common stock, respectively, would not have
been included in the diluted weighted average shares outstanding, as their effect would be antidilutive.

Comprehensive Loss

Comprehensive loss is comprised of net loss and other comprehensive income (loss). The only
items of other comprehensive income (loss), which the Company currently reports, are unrealized gains
(losses) on marketable securities and foreign currency translation. Total comprehensive loss was
$5.8 million, $7.5 million and $11.0 million for 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to prior year amounts to conform with the current year
presentation.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In May 2003, the FASB issued FASB Statement No. 150, Accounting for Certain Financial
Instruments with Characteristics of both Liabilities and Equity. This Statement establishes standards for
classification and measurement of certain financial instruments with characteristics of both liabilities
and equity. The Statement also includes required disclosures for financial instruments within its scope.
For the Company, the Statement was effective for financial instruments entered into or modified after
May 31, 2003, and otherwise will be effective as of January 1, 2004, except for mandatorily redeemable
financial instruments. For certain mandatorily redeemable financial instruments, the Statement will be
effective for the Company on January 1, 2005. The effective date has been deferred indefinitely for
certain other types of mandatorily redeemable financial instruments. The Company currently does not
have any financial instruments that are within the scope of this Statement.

In December 2003, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 46 (revised December 2003),
Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, which addresses how a business enterprise should evaluate
whether it has a controlling financial interest in an entity through means other than voting rights and
accordingly should consolidate the entity. FASB Interpretation No. 46R replaces FASB Interpretation
No. 46, Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, which was issued in January 2003. The Company will
be required to apply FASB Interpretation No. 46R to interests in variable interest entities (VIEs)
created after December 31, 2003. For variable interests in VIEs created before January 1, 2004, the
Interpretation will be applied beginning on January 1, 2005. For any VIEs that must be consolidated
under FASB Interpretation No. 46R that were created before January 1, 2004, the assets, liabilities and
noncontrolling interests of the VIE initially would be measured at their carrying amounts with any
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difference between the net amount added to the balance sheet and any previously recognized interest
being recognized as the cumuiative effect of an accounting change. If determining the carrying amounts
is not practicable, fair value at the date FASB Interpretation No. 46R first applies may be used to
measure the assets, liabilities and noncontrolling interest of the VIE. The Company does not hold any
interests in VIEs.

2. INVESTMENTS

Investments are summarized as follows at December 31 (in thousands):

Gross Gross
Unrealized Unrealized
Amortized Holding Holding Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
December 31, 2003:
Government NOLES . . . . vttt ettt $3,008 $ — $ — $3,008
December 31, 2002:
Corporate NOLES . . . . o v vt e et e e e e $1,002 $ — $ — $1,002
Government NOES . . . . v v vt it it e e 7,608 7 — 7,615
Other asset-backed securities. . .. ........ ... ......... 712 2 — 714
Total short-term investments . . . ..., $9,322 $ 9 $ — $9,331

The Company’s short-term investments all mature in less than one year. Proceeds from the sale of
investment securities were $6.4 million and $13.3 million in 2003 and 2002, respectively. Gross realized
gains and gross realized losses included in interest income, net totaled less than $10,000 in 2003 and
2002.

Interest income was $179,000, $422,000 and $1.2 million in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

3. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment are summarized as follows at December 31 (in thousands):

December 31,

2003 2002
Computer €qUIPMENT . . . ottt et e $15,261 $14,770
Furniture and fixtures . . . ... ... o i e e 2,033 1,859
Office equipment . .. ...ttt 401 429
Leasehold improvements. . . ...... ... ... ... ... 2,359 1,855
SOftWAre . . . e e 3,143 2,940
Trade show equipment .. .......... ... ... ... .. ... ... ... 277 337
Total CoSt. . .ottt e 23,474 22,190
Less accumulated depreciation ......................... 17,617 14,604
Property and equipment, net. ... ...........c. .ot $ 5857 $ 7,586
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Property and equipment is depreciated over useful lives of 3 to 5 years, except for leasehold
improvements, which are depreciated over the lesser of the term of the related lease or the estimated
useful life, varying from 5 to 15 years.

4. BANK LINE OF CREDIT

The Company has a line of credit secured by cash and cash equivalents with a bank in the amount
of $3.0 million with interest to be charged at the bank’s prime rate (4.00% at December 31, 2003).
Principal on the note is due on demand and interest is remitted monthly. As of December 31, 2003 the
Company had borrowed $2.8 million under this line and repaid the amount on January 5, 2004.

The Company paid $16,000, $12,000 and $24,000 of interest in 2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively.

5. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company’s primary shareholder and CEO was a director and 25% sharecholder in a
telemarketing company that provided both telemarketing and fulfillment services to the Company
through March 31, 2002 and in previous years. The Company paid approximately $35,000 in 2002 and
$198,000 in 2001 for these services.

During most of 2001, the Company held a 19% interest in Interactive Portal, Inc. (Interactive
Portal), an application service provider, which offered a variety of subscription based, enhanced
communications and application services. In October 2001, the Company acquired the remaining 81%
ownership of Interactive Portal not owned by the Company from the Company’s primary shareholder
and CEQO and a director of the Company. The purchase price was based on the net book value of
Interactive Portal. The Company issued an aggregate of 99,136 shares of its common stock at $5.00 per
share as payment of the purchase price. The acquisition was accounted for as a purchase. The
operating results of Interactive Portal are included with those of the Company from the date of
acquisition forward. The sellers are entitled to royalties (aggregating 5%) for a period of three years
from October 2001 on sales of certain of the Company’s products, which utilize software developed by
Interactive Portal. Royalty amounts in each of the three years ended December 31, 2003 have totaled
less than $36,000 for each year. In addition, in 2001, the Company paid Interactive Portal
approximately $55,000 for various services provided.

In 2001, the Company entered into a software development agreement and a service contract with
a wireless communications software company, the majority shareholder of which is a director of the
Company and a minority shareholder of which is the Company’s primary shareholder and CEQO. In
2001, the Company paid approximately $100,000 for development work and wireless communication
expenses and the Company received a software order for approximately $17,000. In 2002, the Company
paid approximately $21,000 in wireless communication expenses. As of December 31, 2002, the wireless
communications services were discontinued.

6. SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

On January 25, 2001, the Company received an equity investment from Cisco Systems, Inc. The
Company sold 515,517 shares of common stock at a price of $29.00 per share, yielding approximately
$15.0 million in cash.
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Stock Option Plans

The Company’s Stock Option Plans, adopted in 1995 and 1999, authorize the Board of Directors
or the Compensation Committee, as applicable, to grant incentive and nonqualified stock options. The
Board of Directors has approved up to an aggregate of 3.9 million shares for issuance under the 1999
Stock Option Plans. The exercise price of the options must not be less than the fair market value of
the common stock for incentive options at the date of grant. Options granted under the 1999 Stock
Option Plan generally vest over four years. Options generally become exercisable in equal installments
on each of the first through the fourth anniversaries of the date of grant. The term of each option is
ten years from the date of grant. However, in the case of an incentive option granted to an employee
who, at the time the option is granted, owns stock representing more than ten percent of the voting
power of all classes of stock of the Company, the term of the option shall be five years from the date
of grant. The plans may be terminated by the Board of Directors at anytime. The Board of Directors
has also issued 67,500 nonqualified stock options in 1998 outside of the 1995 and 1999 Stock Option
Plans.

During the fourth quarter of 2003, the Company offered a voluntary stock option exchange
program for its employees. Under the program, employees were given the opportunity, if they chose, to
cancel certain outstanding options for common stock previously granted to them in exchange for new
options for common stock. Each employee clecting to participate in the exchange program was
required to exchange all options granted during the six-month and one day period prior to the
cancellation date. If the options which the employee elected to cancel were granted prior to June 30,
2003, new option grants will be issued for one-third the number of shares of common stock of the
previous option grant with two year vesting and for options granted on or after June 30, 2003, new
option grants will be issued for the equal number of shares of common stock with three year vesting
(except for those relating to options granted on or after June 30, 2003 which had an original vesting
period of one year or less, which new options will be fully exercisable on the date of grant). Under the
exchange program, options for 453,933 shares of common stock with exercise prices ranging from $2.39
to $49.00 were tendered and cancelled and the Company expects to grant replacement options for
158,361 shares of common stock on July 2, 2004 with an exercise price equal to the fair market value of
the common stock on that date, subject to certain conditions such as the employee’s continued
employment.

During the second quarter of 2001, the Company offered a limited voluntary stock option
exchange program for its employees. Under the program, employees were given the opportunity, if they
chose, to cancel certain outstanding options for common stock previously granted to them in exchange
for new options for common stock to be issued six months and one day after exchange. Each employee
electing to participate in the exchange program was required to exchange all options granted during the
six-month period prior to the cancellation date. The exchange resulted in the voluntary cancellation of
options to purchase approximately 218,000 shares of common stock with exercise prices ranging from
$12.00 to $49.00 per share. Approximately 216,000 options to purchase common stock were granted
with an exercise price equal to the fair market value of the common stock of $4.70.

The Company recognized expense of $160,000, $109,000 and $197,000 in 2003, 2002 and 2001,
respectively, for the amortization of stock options granted to non-employees and the amortization of
stock options granted to employees with an intrinsic value on the date of issuance.
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Stock option activity is summarized as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Exercise Exercise Exercise
Options Price Options Price Options Price
Balances, beginning of year . . 3,247,374 § 8.59 3,187,930 $ 9.81 2,232,816 $11.03
Options granted . ......... 672,560 3.24 555,360 4.41 1,899,070 11.14
Options exercised . . . .. .. .. (94,912) 147 (111,185)  1.03 (247,450)  1.33
Options canceled ......... (835,222) 15.29 (384,731) 13.18 (696,506) 20.38
Options outstanding, end of
Vear . ... 2,989,800 5.74 3,247,374 8.59 3,187,930 9.81
Option price range at end of
VEAr & e v e e $0.13 - $50.50 $0.13 - $50.50 $0.13 - $50.50
Options available for grant at
endofyear............ 1,639,906 1,755,244 1,728,023

Weighted average fair value

of options granted during
theyear .............. $2.71 $3.73 $9.43

The following table summarizes information about the options outstanding at December 31, 2003:

Options Outstanding Opticns Exercisable
Weighted Weighted Weighted

Average Average Average
Number Remaining Exercise Number Exercise

Range of Exercise Prices Outstanding  Contractual Life Price Exercisable Price
$013-8299...... ... 772,067 5.87 years $ 175 483,158 $ 1.10
$300-8$449. ... .. L, 779,971 7.87 years 3.24 355,431 3.13
$450-8$599. . ... ... 791,788 8.03 years 5.62 399,840 5.59
$600-3899. ... . . 234,325 7.05 years 7.74 108,904 7.98
$900-81349. ... ... 210,545 6.14 years 10.88 170,321 10.67
$13.50-85050 . ... ..o 201,104 6.84 years 23.39 131,857 24.35
Total/average ........... ... ... .... 2,989,800 574 1,649,511 593

2000 Employee Stock Purchase Plan

In May 2000, the Company adopted the 2000 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the 2000 Purchase
Plan). A total of 500,000 shares of common stock have been reserved for issuance under the 2000
Purchase Plan. The 2000 Purchase Plan permits eligible employees to acquire shares of the Company’s
common stock through periodic payroll deductions of up to 20% of their total compensation. The price
at which the common stock may be purchased is 85% of the lesser of the fair market value of
Interactive Intelligence common stock on the first or last business day of the immediately preceding
calendar quarter. An employee may set aside no more than $25,000 to purchase shares annually. The
initial offering period commenced on April 1, 2000. A total of 134,196, 130,511 and 76,665 shares were
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issued in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively, under the 2000 Purchase Plan at an average price of $2.87
in 2003, $3.47 in 2002 and $8.80 in 2001.

7. LEASE AGREEMENTS

The Company leases its corporate headquarters facility under a non-cancelable operating lease
agreement, which expires in 2018. The 120,000 square foot building is located in Indianapolis, Indiana.
The Company has lease agreements for 45,390 square feet related to its previous corporate
headquarters. These leases expire on February 29, 2004 and February 12, 2005.

Minimum future lease payments under non-cancelable operating leases as of December 31, 2003
are summarized as follows (in thousands):

Thereafter

Total minimum lease payments

The Company also rents office space for sales, development and international offices under
month-to-month leases and leases with terms generally less than one year. Rent expense was
$4.6 million, $2.6 million and $2.9 million in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

8. CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

No entity accounted for 10% or more of revenues or accounts receivable in 2003, 2002 or 2001.
However, five entities collectively represented 30% and 29% of the accounts receivable balance at
December 31, 2003 and December 31, 2002, respectively. The Company evaluates the credit worthiness
of its customers on a periodic basis. The Company generally does not require collateral.

9. RETIREMENT SAVINGS PLAN

The Company maintains a 401(k) retirement savings plan to provide retirement benefits for
substantially all of its North American employees. Participants in the plan may elect to contribute up to
20% of their annual compensation to the plan, limited to the maximum amount allowed by the Internal
Revenue Code. The Company, at its discretion, may make annual contributions to the plan. The
Company has made no contributions to the plan through December 31, 2003.
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16. INCOME TAXES

Income tax expense attributable to income from continuing operations consists of (in thousands):

Current Deferred  Total

December 31, 2003:

U.S. Federal $ —
6

205
$211

December 31, 2002:
U.S. Federal

December 31, 2001:
U.S. Federal

$ — 8271

Income tax expense attributable to income from continuing operations differed from the benefit of
$1.9 million, $2.5 million and $3.6 million for 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively, computed by applying
the U.S. Federal income tax rate of 34% to pretax loss primarily due to the fact that the Company has
provided a valuation allowance against its tax credit carryforwards and net operating losses due to the
uncertainty of their realizability.

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax
assets and deferred tax liabilities at December 31, 2003 and 2002 are presented below (in thousands):

2003 2002

Deferred tax assets attributable to:
Net operating loss carryforward $ 19,494 § 13,344
Deferred revenue — 4,114

Research and development carryforward 1,956
1,372 1,222

Total gross deferred tax assets 23,340 20,636
Less valuation allowance (23,340)  (20,636)

Net deferred tax assets — 3 —

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is more likely
than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The ultimate
realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the




Imteractive Intelligence, Inc.
Netes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001

periods in which those temporary differences become deductible. Management considers the scheduled
reversal of deferred tax liabilities, projected future taxable income, and tax planning strategies in
making this assessment. In order to fully realize the deferred tax asset, the Company will need to
generate future taxable income of approximately $68 million prior to the expiration of the net
operating loss carryforwards in 2018. Based upon the level of historical taxable income and projections
for future taxable income over the periods in which the deferred tax assets are deductible, management
believes it is more likely than not that the Company will not realize the benefits of these deductible
differences and has therefore recorded a full valuation allowance.

11. SEGMENT DISCLOSURES

In accordance with FASB Statement No. 131, Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and
Related Information, the Company views its operations and manages its business as principally one
segment which is interaction management software applications licensing and associated services. As a
result, the financial information disclosed herein represents all of the material financial information
related to the Company’s principal operating segment.

Revenues derived from non-North American customers accounted for approximately 13% in 2003,
19% in 2002 and 22% in 2001 of the Company’s total revenues. The Company attributes its revenues to
countries based on the country in which the customer is located. The sales and licensing revenues in
each individual non-North American country accounted for less than 10% of total revenues in 2003,
2002 or 2001. Approximately 10% of the Company’s assets are located in foreign countries, of which
approximately 4% are located in the United Kingdom.

12. CONTINGENCIES

From time to time the Company has received claims from competitors and other technology
providers claiming that the Company’s technology infringes their proprietary rights. One such claim has
resulted in a legal proceeding being filed against the Company, which is described below. The Company
cannot assure you that these matters can be resolved amicably without litigation, or that the Company
will be able to enter into licensing arrangements on terms and conditions that would not have a
material adverse effect on its business, financial condition or results of operations.

In July 2002, the Company received a letter from a consulting firm that has been retained by a
telecommunication technology provider to develop and implement a licensing program based on the
technology provider’s patents. The consulting firm believes that the Company has infringed on the
technology provider’s propriety rights and therefore feels that a licensing agreement between the
Company and the technology provider is appropriate. The Company believes that the technology
subject to this claim is not significant to the software it licenses. The Company believes that this matter
can be resolved without a material adverse effect on its business, financial condition or results of
operations, however the Company cannot provide assurance as to the outcome.

In December 2002, the Company received a letter from one of its resellers requesting
indemnification related to a request that the reseller had received for indemnification from a customer.
The customer had received a letter from a third party indicating that the customer may be infringing
patents held by the third party. To date, the Company’s patent counsel has not determined the validity
or the applicability of these patents as they relate to its products or whether the reseller is entitled to
indemnification. The Company believes that this matter can be resolved without a material adverse
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effect on its business, financial condition or results of operations, however the Company cannot provide
assurance as to the outcome.

On September 30, 2003, Recursion Software, Inc. filed suit in Dallas County Court in Dallas, Texas
against the Company alleging breach of contract and money due under claims of quantum meruit and
unjust enrichment. Recursion claims that the Company incorporated Recursion Software into one of its
products in breach of the underlying license. No dollar amount has been stated in the action. The
Company believes that it has strong defenses to the claims and intends to vigorously defend against the
action. The Company believes that this matter can be resolved without a material adverse effect on its
business, financial condition or results of operations, however the Company cannot provide assurance
as to the outcome.

In November 2002, the Company received a notification from the French government as a result of
a tax audit that had been conducted encompassing the years 1998, 1999, 2000 and 2001. These
assessments claim various taxes are owed related to Value Added Tax (“VAT”) and corporation taxes in
addition to what has previously been paid and accrued. As of December 31, 2003, the assessment
related to VAT was approximately $2.9 million and the assessment related to corporation taxes was
approximately $378,000. The Company’s tax counsel has assessed the possibility of the Company paying
the assessment related to VAT as remote and the assessment related to corporation taxes as reasonably
possible, therefore the Company has not accrued for these amounts. The Company is appealing the
assessments, but cannot assure you that these matters will be resolved without litigation or that it will
not have to pay some or all of the assessments.

From time to time, the Company is also involved in certain legal proceedings in the ordinary
course of conducting its business. While the ultimate liability pursuant to these actions cannot currently
be determined, the Company believes these legal proceedings will not have a material adverse effect on
its financial position or results of operations. Litigation in general, and intellectual property litigation in
particular, can be expensive and disruptive to normal business operations. Moreover, the results of
complex legal proceedings are difficult to predict.

13. RESTRUCTURING AND OTHER CHARGES
Year Ended December 31, 2003

In February 2003, the Company announced its plan to downsize and reorganize resources in
Europe, the Middle East and Africa (“EMEA”). The French office was significantly affected, with most
positions moved or eliminated. The Company determined that the severance payments and related
legal fees qualified as restructuring costs in accordance with FASB Statement No. 146, Accounting for
Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities.

Effective April 1, 2003, the Company moved its worldwide headquarters to a new building in
Indianapolis, Indiana and all Indianapolis-based employees, equipment and furniture were relocated to
the new facility. The Company continues to owe lease payments on the previous headquarters through
February 29, 2004, for most of the space, and through February 12, 2005 for the remaining space. The
Company determined that the remaining lease payments on the previous headquarters, net of sublease
income, qualified as an exit cost and was recognized in accordance with FASB Statement No. 146 as
restructuring charges. The Company does not anticipate additional restructuring charges related to the
relocation of its worldwide headquarters.
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The Company recognized restructuring charges in accordance with FASB Statement No. 146 of
$3.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2003, which includes approximately $1.3 million related
to severance.

The Company has ten former employees from its French office that it has not reached agreement
regarding severance. The Company has recorded a liability for the estimated severance for those
employees in accordance with FASB Statement No. 146. The Company could incur additional expenses
related to these employees for legal fees and for additional severance costs when a settlement is
reached.

Year Ended December 31, 2002

On April 4, 2002, the Company commenced a restructuring program to reduce expenses and
improve efficiency due to macro-economic and capital spending issues affecting its industry. The
restructuring program consisted of reducing approximately 10% of the Company’s worldwide workforce
and was substantially completed by the end of the second quarter of 2002. The reduction in staff
affected most business functions and geographic regions. Nearly all of the $649,000 recorded as
restructuring charges related to severance payments and fringe benefits, which was classified as
operating expenses.

Beginning in November 2002, the Company commenced a small restructuring program to continue
to reduce expenses and improve efficiency due to macro-economic and capital spending issues affecting
the industry. The restructuring program consisted of reducing approximately 2% of the Company’s
worldwide workforce. The reduction in staff affected several departments and geographic regions.

Nearly all of the $49,000 recorded as restructuring charges related to severance payments and fringe
benefits, which was classified as operating expenses.

In addition, the Company incurred approximately $76,000 in legal fees in 2002 related to the
potential restructuring of the resources in EMEA.

Year Ended December 31, 2001

On July 6, 2001 the Company commenced a restructuring program to reduce expenses and
improve efficiency due to macro-economic and capital spending issues affecting its industry. In addition
to the charge related to restructuring, the Company also incurred a charge related to the write-down of
an impaired asset in 2001.

The restructuring program consisted of reducing approximately 10% percent of the Company’s
worldwide workforce and closing certain sales offices and was substantially completed by the end of the
third quarter of fiscal 2001. The reduction in staff affected most business functions and geographic
regions. The Company recorded a restructuring charge of approximately $456,000, most of which
related to severance payments and fringe benefits.

In the third quarter of 2001, due to the decline in business conditions, the Company wrote down
its 19% equity investment in Interactive Portal. The Company recognized a charge for this write-down

in the amount of approximately $600,000. In October 2001, the remaining 81% ownership of Interactive
Portal was purchased as described in Note 5.
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As a result of the restructuring program and the impaired asset, the Company recorded charges in
the third quarter of 2001 totaling approximately $1.1 million, which were classified as operating
expenses.

A summary of the beginning accrued restructuring charges, expensed amount, cash payments and
the ending accrued restructuring charges for December 31 is presented below (in thousands).

Beginning Cash Ending
Balance Expense [Payments Balance

December 31, 2003:
EMEA restructuring .. ...........utiunnonnennn... $53 $1,770  $(1,274) $549
Headquarters relocation .. ... ..... ... ... 1,670 (1,403) 267

|

5 $53  $3440 $(2,677) $816
December 31, 2002:

Worldwide restructuring. ... .. ... i $5 $ 774 8§ (726) § 53
December 31, 2001:

Worldwide restructuring. . .. .. ... . i $— $ 456 § (451) § 5
Impaired @sset . ... ...t — 600 (600) —
TOal. e $— 1056 S$(1,05) § 5
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SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (unaudited)

(in thousands, except per share amounts)
Quarters in Year Ended December 31, 2003
First Second Third Fourth
Revenues:
SOftWarE . . . e $ 8621 §$ 5772 $ 5684 § 6246
SEIVICES & it i e e e 5,763 6,335 6,455 6,636
Total TeVENUES . . . o e e 14,384 12,107 12,139 12,882
Cost of revenue:
SOftWarE . . o e e e e 292 325 254 319
SEIVICES . o i it e e e 3,186 3254 2,962 3,049
Total cost of revenue . . .. .. v i e e 3,478 3,579 3216 3,368
Gross profit . .. ... e 10,906 8,528 8,923 9,514
Operating expenses:
Salesand marketing . . ........ ... ... .. e 5,207 4,910 5,028 5,637
Research and development .. ....... .. ... .. ... ... ... ... 3,495 3,472 3,322 3,154
General and administrative . . . .. . . 0t e 1,456 1,356 1,546 1,669
Restructuring and other charges . .. ....... ... .. ... ....... 448 2,690 34 268
Total operating eXpenses. . . . . ... oo vt 10,606 12,428 9,930 10,728
Operating income (I0SS) . . . ..o oottt e 300 (3,900) (1,007) (1,214)
Interest iNCOME, NEt . . . . . . . o vt ittt et e e et et e s 53 43 36 31
Income (loss) before income taxes . . . ... 353 (3,857) (971)  (1,183)
TNCOME tAXES v v i vt vt e e e e e s 53 43 54 61
Netincome (I0SS) .. ... $ 300 $(3,900) $(1,025) $(1,244)
Net income (loss) per share—basic and diluted . ................. $ 002 $ (0.25) § (0.07) § (0.08)
Shares used to compute net loss per share:
BasiC . . o 15,565 15,600 15,638 15,705
Diluted . .. o e 15,947 15,600 15,638 15,705
Quarters in Year Ended December 31, 2002
First Second Third Fourth
Revenues:
SOftWATE . . . o e $ 7592 $ 7,704 $ 6,753 § 6,274
SEIVICES o ot e 4,361 4,416 5,147 5,559
Total TEVENUES . . . o vt e 11,953 12,120 11,900 11,833
Cost of revenue:
SO WArE . . . o e e e e 272 192 273 249
SETVICES . ot e e e e e 3,023 2,365 2,920 3,315
Total cost Of reVEnUE . . . . . oot it e 3,295 3,057 3,193 3,564
Gross profit . . ... . e 8,658 9,063 8,707 8,269
Operating expenses:
Sales and marketing . ... .... ... ... .. ... 5,549 5,191 5,189 5,093
Research and development . ...... .. ... .. ... ... 3,906 3,712 3,739 3,785
General and administrative . . ... ... oot 1,497 1,381 1,369 1,359
Restructuring and other charges . .. ........ ... ... ... ... ... — 682 — 92
Total operating eXpenses. . . . ... ..ot ., 10,952 10,966 10,297 10,329
Operating 10ss. . . ... .. e (2,294)  (1,903) (1,590) (2,060)
Interest income, NEt . . . . . .o vt e 129 104 86 93
Loss before income taxes .. ......... ... .. (2,165) (1,799)  (1,504)  (1,967)
Income taxes . ... ... i e e 69 60 50 51
Nt JOSS © i e e $(2,234) $(1,859) $(1,554) $(2,018)
Net loss per share—basicand diluted . . .. ... ... ... ... ....... $ (0.15) $ (0.12) $ (0.10) $ (0.13)
Shares used to compute net loss per share ..................... 15,337 15,398 15,453 15,500




Schedule II—Vaiuation and Qualifying Accounts
Interactive Intelligence, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Charged

(Credited) to
Balance at Costs and Charged to Balance at
Beginning Expenses, Other Accounts— Deductions— End of
Description of Period net Describe Describe (1) Period
Accounts receivable allowances
deducted from asset accounts:
Year ended December 31, 2003 ... $671,000 $(97,000)(2) $ — $220,000  $354,000
Year ended December 31, 2002 ... 677,000 325,000 — 331,000 671,000
Year ended December 31, 2001 ... 631,000 744,000 — 698,000 677,000

(1) Uncollectible accounts written off, net of recoveries.

(2) Credits reflect recovery of amounts previously written off or revisions to previous estimates.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

We maintain a set of disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that
information required to be disclosed by us in the reports filed by us under the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934, as amended (“Exchange Act”) is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the
time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms. We carried out an evaluation, under the
supervision and with the participation of our management, including our President and Chief Executive
Officer and our Chief Financial Cfficer and Treasurer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation
of our disclosure controls and procedures as of December 31, 2003 pursuant to Rule 13a-15 of the
Exchange Act. Based on that evaluation, our President and Chief Executive Officer and our Chief
Financial Cfficer and Treasurer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures are effective.

There have been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during
the quarter ended December 31, 2003 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to
materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

PART I
Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registramnt.

Information with respect to Directors set forth under the caption “Election of Directors,”
information with respect to Executive Officers set forth under the caption “Executive Officers,”
information with respect to any delinquent filers set forth under the caption “Section 16(a) Beneficial
Ownership Reporting Compliance” and information with respect to the code of ethics set forth under
the caption “Code of Ethics” appearing in the Company’s definitive Proxy Statement for the Annual
Meeting of Shareholders to be held on May 19, 2004, which will be filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission not later than 120 days after December 31, 2003, are incorporated herein by
reference.

Item 11. Executive Compensation.

Information with respect to remuneration of the Company’s officers and Directors set forth under
the caption “Executive Compensation” appearing in the Company’s definitive Proxy Statement for the
Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on May 19, 2004, which will be filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission not later than 120 days after December 31, 2003, is incorporated herein by
reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters.

Information set forth under the captions “Principal Shareholders”, “Security Ownership of
Management” and “Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Compensation Plans” appearing in
the Company’s definitive Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on
May 19, 2004, which will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission not later than 120 days
after December 31, 2003, is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions.

Information set forth under the caption “Certain Transactions” appearing in the Company’s
definitive Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on May 19, 2004, which




will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission not later than 120 days after December 31,
2003, is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

Information set forth under the caption “Independent Auditors” appearing in the Company’s
definitive Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on May 19, 2004, which
will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission not later than 120 days after December 31,
2003, is incorporated herein by reference.

PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules, and Reports on Form &-K.
1. Consolidated Financial Statements

The following information appears in Item 8 of Part II of this Report:

o Reports of Independent Auditors

o Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2003 and 2002

o Consolidated Statements of Operations for the Years Ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001

o Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity for the Years Ended December 31,
2003, 2002 and 2001

> Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001

o Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial Statement Schedule

The following financial statement schedule is included in this Report:
o Schedule II—Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

All other schedules are omitted because they are not required, not applicable, or the required
information is otherwise shown in the consolidated financial statements or the notes thereto.

Reports on Form 8-K

On November 17, 2003, the Company filed a Form 8-K, which attached a press release announcing
its plans to begin a stock repurchase program of its common stock.

Exhibits

Documents listed below are being filed as exhibits herewith. Documents identified by parenthetical
numbers are being incorporated herein by reference and, pursuant to Rule 12b-32 of the General
Rules and Regulations promulgated by the Commission under the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, reference is made to such documents as previously filed as exhibits with the Commission.

Exhibit
Number Document

31 (1) Restated Articles of Incorporation of the Company
32 (1) By-Laws of the Company, as amended to date
10.1 (1) *1995 Incentive Stock Option Plan, as amended
10.2 (1) *1995 Nonstatutory Stock Option Incentive Plan
10.3 (3) *1999 Stock Option and Incentive Plan, as amended February 22, 2000
10.4 (1) *Outside Directors Stock Cption Plan, as amended

10.6 (1) Strategic Relationship Agreement between the Company and Dialogic Corporation




10.7
10.8

109

10.10

10.11

1012

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

(1) Support Services Agreement between the Company and Dialogic Corporation

(1) *(i) Consulting and Employment Agreement between the Company and John R. Gibbs,
dated January 2, 1995

(1) *(ii) Amendment A, dated May 14, 1999, to Consulting and Employment Agreement
between the Company and John R. Gibbs, dated January 2, 1995

(12) Employment Agreement between the Company and Donna LeGrand dated August 11,
2003

(1) *Employment Agreement between the Company and Keith A. Midkiff, dated
February 10, 1997

Employment Agreement between the Company and Stephen R. Head, dated
November 3, 2003

(1) *(i) Employment Agreement between the Company and Jeremiah J. Fleming, dated as of
March 1, 1997

(1) *(ii) Amendment A, dated May 14, 1999, to Employment Agreement between the
Company and Jeremiah J. Fleming, dated as of March 1, 1997

(9) *(iii) Letter of Assignment between the Company and Jeremiah J. Fleming, dated as of
April 1, 2001

(1) *Stock Option Agreement between the Company and Donald E. Brown, M.D., dated
September 22, 1998

(10) *Employment Agreement between the Company and David N. Hudson, dated
January 20, 2002.

(10) (i) Office Lease, dated April 1, 2001, between the Company and Duke-Weeks Realty
Limited Partnership (Exhibits thereto will be furnished supplementally to the Securities
and Exchange Commission upon request.)

(10} (ii) Lease Modification Agreement, dated September 19, 2001, between the Company
and Duke-Weeks Realty Limited Partnership (Exhibits thereto will be furnished
supplementally to the Securities and Exchange Commission upon request.)

(8) (i) Revolving Credit Loan Agreement, dated December 21, 2000, between the Company
and KeyBank National Association (“KeyBank”), Revolving Credit Promissory Note
made by the Company in favor of Keybank National Association, dated December 21,
2000.

(9) (ii) Modification and/or Extension Agreement, dated April 30, 2001, between the
Company and KeyBank

(11) (iii) Modification and/or Extension Agreement, dated April 29, 2002, between the
Company and KeyBank

(1) Consolidated Subordinated Promissory Note made by the Company in favor of Donald
E. Brown, M.D., dated May 1, 1999

(1) (i) Office Lease, dated September 16, 1998, between the Company and College Park
Plaza Associates, Inc.

(4) (ii) Lease Modification Agreement, dated December 8, 1999, between the Company and
College Park Plaza Associates, Inc.
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10.20 Commercial Pledge and Security Agreement, dated December 19, 2003, between the
Company and KeyBank National Association and Promissory Note made by the
Company in favor of Keybank National Association, dated December 19, 2003

10.23 (1) Form of Indemnity Agreement between the Company and each of its directors and
executive officers

10.27 (5) *Form of Amendment to Employment Agreement, dated March 15, 2000, between the
Company and each of Messrs. John R. Gibbs, Keith A. Midkiff and Jeremiah J. Fleming.

10.28 (6) *Interactive Intelligence, Inc. Employee Stock Purchase Plan
10.29 (7) *Interactive Intelligence, Inc. 401(k) Savings Plan

1031  (10) Stock Purchase Agreement dated as of October 1, 2001 by and among the Company and
Donald E. Brown, M.D. and Robert A. Compton (Exhibits thereto will be furnished
supplementally to the Securities and Exchange commission upon request.)

10.32. (10) Royalty Agreement dated as of October 1, 2001 by and among the Company and
Donald E. Brown, M.D.

10.33  (10) Royalty Agreement dated as of October 1, 2001 by and among the Company and
Robert A. Compton

21 Subsidiaries of the Company

231 Consent of Ernst & Young LLP

232 Consent of KPMG LLP

311 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) of the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002

31.2 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002

321 Certification of Donald E. Brown, M.D., Chief Executive Officer, pursuant to 18 U. S. C.
Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
322 Certification of Stephen R. Head, Chief Financial Officer, pursuant to 18 U. S. C.

Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

* The indicated exhibit is a management contract, compensatory plan or arrangement required to be
filed by Item 601 of Regulation S-K.

(1) The copy of this exhibit filed as the same exhibit number to the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1 (Registration No. 333-79509) is incorporated herein by reference.

(2) The copy of this exhibit filed as the same exhibit number to the Company’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 1999 is incorporated herein by reference.

(3) The copy of this exhibit filed as the same exhibit number to the Company’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2000 is incorporated herein by reference.

(4) The copy of this exhibit filed as the same exhibit number to the Company’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2000 is incorporated herein by reference.

(5) The copy of this exhibit filed as the same exhibit number to the Company’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1999 is incorporated herein by reference.
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(6) The copy of this exhibit filed as Exhibit 4.3 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 H
(Registration No. 333-33734) is incorporated herein by reference.

(7) The copy of this exhibit filed as Exhibit 4.3 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-8
(Registration No. 333-33772) is incorporated herein by reference.

(8) The copy of this exhibit filed as the same exhibit number to the Company’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2000 is incorporated herein by reference.

(9) The copy of this exhibit filed as the same exhibit number to the Company’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2001 is incorporated herein by reference.

(10) The copy of this exhibit filed as the same exhibit number to the Company’s Annual Report on
Form 10-X for the year ended December 31, 2001 is incorporated herein by reference.

(11) The copy of this exhibit filed as the same exhibit number to the Company’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2002 is incorporated herein by reference.

(12) The copy of this exhibit filed as the same exhibit number to the Company’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003 is incorporated herein by reference.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized.

Interactive Intelligence, Inc.
(Registrant)

/s/ STEPHEN R. HEAD

Stephen R. Head
Chief Financial Officer, Vice President of Finance
and Administration, Secretary and Treasurer

Date: March 25, 2004 By

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed
below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates

indicated.

SIGNATURE

/s/ DONALD E. BROWN, M.D.

Donald E. Brown, M.D.

/s/ STEPHEN R. HEAD

Stephen R. Head

/s/ ROBERT A. COMPTON

Robert A. Compton

/s/ SAMUEL F. HULBERT, PH.D

Samuel E Hulbert, Ph.D

/s/ WILLIAM E. MCWHIRTER

William E. McWhirter

CAPACITY

Chairman, President,
Chief Executive Officer and
Director (Principal Executive Officer)

Chief Financial Officer,
Vice President of Finance and
Administration, Secretary and Treasurer
{Principal Financial Officer and Principal
Accounting Officer)

Director

Director

Director
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DATE

March 25, 2004

March 25, 2004

March 25, 2004

March 25, 2004

March 25, 2004
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| | Year ended December 31 2003 2002 29001 2000 1999
{ i Consolidated Statement of Operations Data (in thousands except per share dota)
; Revenues: '
’ Software $ 26,323 $ 28,323 $ 31,321 $ 16,784 $ 14,231
| Services 25189 19,483 16,625 10,475 4,850
Total revenues 51,512 47,806 47,946 27,259 19,081
Cost of revenues:
Software 1,190 986 959 540 194
Services 12,451 12,123 13,430 10,118 5728
Total cost of revenues 13,641 13,109 14,389 10.658 5922
Gross profit 37871 34,697 33,557 16,601 13,159
Operating expenses:
Sales and marketing 20,782 21,022 21,987 16,596 10,175
: Research and development 13,443 15,142 15,616 10,835 6,967
: General and administrative 6,027 5,606 6,786 5158 2,773
i Restructuring and other charges 3,440 774 1,056 — —
Total operating expenses 43692 42,544 45445 32,589 19915
i Operating loss (5,821) (7,847) (11,888) (15,988) (6,756)
i Interest income, net 163 412 1,169 1,108 361
i ‘ Loss before income taxes (5,658) (7,435) (10,719) (14,880) (7,117)
i, Income taxes 211 230 271 180 —
|| Netloss $ (5.869) § _(7665) $ (10,990) $ (15,060) s (a1
I
. Basic and diluted:
Net loss per share $  (0.38) $  (0.50) $ (0.73) $ (1.06) $  (0.62)
Shares used to compute net loss per share 15,627 15,423 15,058 14,171 11,469
Consolidated Balance Sheet Data (in thousands)
Cash and cash equivalents $ 12,461 $ 5913 $ 14,503 $ 1,999 $ 2,235
Cash and cash equivalents and investments 15,469 15,244 22,084 13,721 23,365
Working capital (2,667) 352 5,155 50 10,709
| Total assets 33,259 35,166 43,508 34,453 32,370
‘ Long-term debt - — - - 377
‘, t, Total shareholders’ equity 3,791 8,984 15,817 10,358 24,155
|
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} | Board of Directors
Donald E. Brown, M.D.

Chairman of the Board, President
and Chief Executive Officer

Robert A. Compton
Chief Executive Officer,
Nolnk Communications

Samuel F. Hulbert, Ph.D. 1 £
President, Rose-Hulman Institute
of Technology

L

William E. McWhirter + £
Chairman Emeritus of Fifth Third
Bank, Indiana and former Chief

Executive Officer of Peoples Bank

& Trust Company

+ Member of Audit and Compensaticn
Committees

+ Member of Nominating Committee

Officers

Donald E. Brown, M.D, *
President and Chief Executive Officer

Stephen R. Head *

Chief Financial Officer,

Vice President of Finance

and Administration, Secretary
and Treasurer

Jeremiah J. Fleming *

Executive Vice President of Sales,
The Americas and Europe, Middle
East and Africa

Donna G. LeGrand *
General Counsel

Pamela J. Hynes *
Vice President of Customer Loyalty

Michael D. Gagle, Ph.D.
Chief Scientist

* Denotes executive officer

This annual report to shareholders includes a complete copy of the Company’s annua! report Form 10K, excluding exhibits.
Copies of exhibits may be obtained, upon written request of any shareholder of the Company to the Chief Financial Officer.

This report contoins certain forward-looking statements that involve a number of risks and uncertainties, Among the factors that could couse actual results to differ materially ore the following: rapid technologica!
changes in the industry, volatility in the market price of the company’s common stock, the company’s ability to achieve profitability, to manage successfully its growth and increosingly complex third party relationships,
to maintain successful relotionships with its current and any new reseflers, to maintain and improve its current products and to develop new products and to protect its proprietory rights adequately, and other
factors described in the company’s SEC filings, including the company’s latest annuat report on Form 10-K and its quarterly reports on Form 10-Q.

Interactive intelligence Inc. is the owner of the marks INTERACTIVE INTELLIGENCE, its associated LOGO and numerous other marks. All other trademarks mentioned in this document are the property of their respactive owners.

Copyright © 2004 Interactive Intelligence Inc. All rights reserved.
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| Baker & Daniels
300 North Meridian, Suite 2700
Indianapolis, Indiana 46204

Intellectual
Property Counsel

Woodard, Emhardt, Naughton,
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111 Monument Circle, Suite 3700
Indianapolis, Indiana 46204
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Offices

World Headquarters

i 7601 Interactive Way

. Indianapolis, indiana 46278
United States of America
317.872.3000 Voice and Fax
www.ININ.com
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8 The Square, Stockley Park
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United Kingdom
+4402086106045 Voice
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Hammarby Fabriksvag 23
120 33
Stockholm, Sweden

Auditors

KPMG LLP

2400 First Indiana Plaza

135 North Pennsylvania Street
Indianapolis, Indiana 46204

Annual Meeting
of Shareholders

The Company’s Annual Meeting
will be held at 1:00 p.m. on
Wednesday, May 19, 2004 at
Interactive Intelligence

World Headquarters

7601 Interactive Way
Indianapolis, Indiana 46278
317.872.3000
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Asia Pacific

Suite 24.3, Level 24 Menara IMC
8 Jalan Sultan Ismai!

50250 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia
+60327153333 Voice
+60327153343 Fax

Suite 902A, Level 9
275 Alfred Street
North Sydney, NSW
2060, Australia

10F Teikoku Hotel Tower
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Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo,
1000011

Japan

30th Floor ASEM Tower
159-1 Samsung-Dong
Kangnam-KU

Seou} 135-798

Korea
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Wells Fargo Shareowner Services
Attn: Shareowner Services

167 North Concord Exchange
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North America
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Suite 100

Reston, Virginia 20191
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Central Region Sales Offices
17295 Chesterfield Airport Road
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Investor Relotions
Investor information is included
on Interactive Intelligence’s
Web site at www.ININ.com

If you have questions or
comments, or to request Investor
Relations literature, please write,
call or send an electronic
message via the Internet to:

Investor Relations
Interactive Intelligence, Inc.
7601 Interactive Way
indianapolis, Indiana 46278

317.872.3000 ext. 4 Voice
317.872.3000 Fax

investorrelations@ININ.com
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